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1. GENERAL	INFORMATION

Name:   National Skills Authority      Telephone:  (012) 312 5066

Physical address: Room 611, 6th Floor, Ndinaye House,    Postal address:  Room 611, 6th Floor Ndinaye House, 

    178 Francis Baard Street,         178 Francis Baard Street 

    Pretoria, 0001         Pretoria, 0001

Website:  www.nationalskillsauthority.org.za     Stakeholder feedback on this report to be sent to:

Facebook:  nationalskillsauthority         Ms Olwethu Nyewe – Acting Director of the NSA 

Twitter   @skillsauthority         Nyewe.O@dhet.gov.za
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2.  LIST OF ABBREVIATIONS

AA Accounting Authority
AOP Annual Operational Plan
APP  Annual Performance Plan
AR Annual Report 
BANKSETA Banking Sector Education and Training Authority
CBO Community Based Organisations
CCBA Constituency Capacity Building and Advocacy
CETA Construction Education and Training Authority
COVID-19 Coronavirus Disease, 2019
DHET Department of Higher Education and Training 
DoL Department of Labour 
DPSA Department of Public Service and Administration
DSI Department of Science and Innovation
ERR Economic Reconstruction and Recovery Skills Strategy
ERRP Economic Reconstruction and Recovery Plan 
ETDP SETA Education, Training and Development Practices Sector Education and 

Training Authority
EXCO Executive Committee 
HR Human Resources
HRDC Human Resource Development Council 
HRDS, 2030 Human Resource Development Strategy, 2030 
HRM Human Resource Management System
ICT Information and Communication Technology
INDLELA National Artisan Development Support Centre
INSETA Insurance Sector Education and Training Authority
IPAP Industrial Policy Action Plan, 2013
MHESI Minister of Higher Education, Science and Innovation
MICT SETA  Media, Information and Communication Technologies Sector 

Education and Training Authority
NACTU National Council of Trade Unions 

NSA National Skills Authority
NSA Board The Authority
NDP National Development Plan 
NEET Not in Employment, Education or Training 
NGP New Growth Path
NSA National Skills Authority
NSDP National Skills Development Plan, 2030
NSDS National Skills Development Strategy 
PEGAC Limpopo Premier’s Employment Growth Advisory Council 
PERSAL Personal and Salary System
PFMA Public Finance Management Act 1 of 1999, as amended
P-MSP Provincial Master Skills Plan
PSDF Provincial Skills Development Forum
PSET Post-School Education and Training 
QCTO Quality Council for Trades and Occupations
SAQA South African Qualifications Authority
SDA Skills Development Act, No 97 of 1998 as amended
SDLA Skills Development Levies Act, No 9 of 1999 
SETA Services Sector Education and Training Authority
SSETA Sector Education and Training Authority 
SMME Small, Medium and Micro Enterprise
SP Strategic Plan 
SSP Sector Skills Plan
TVET Technical Vocational Education and Training
UNDP United Nations Development Programme 
WE Workers Education

WP-PSET White Paper for Post School Education and Training 

WP-STI White Paper on Science, Technology and Innovation
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3. FOREWORD	BY	THE	CHAIRPERSON

� Introduction

As the Chairperson of the fifth National Skills Authority Board (the Authority), it gives me great 
pleasure to present this first annual report of our five-year term for the period 01 April 2020 to 
31 March 2021. The annual report recounts the performance of the NSA as a statutory body 
that advises the Minister of Higher Education, Science, and Innovation on skills development 
policy/strategy, liaison with SETAs, progress on the implementation of the skills development 
strategy, and on the investigations conducted during the financial year. 

The newly appointed Authority’s term commenced at the same time as the COVID-19 global 
pandemic which, in addition to needing to familiarise ourselves with the work of the NSA, 
also required adapting to a whole new way of work, part of which was resolving to hold all 
meetings virtually using online platforms. A benefit of this mode of communication is that it 
allowed the Authority to fast-track engagements with the SETAs and provided an opportunity 
for the Authority to play an improved oversight role on skills development matters, especially 
with regards to the implementation of the Skills Development Act and the NSDP, 2030. I am 
most pleased to say that, even with these challenges, the Authority was able to successfully 
deliver on its strategic mandates.

� High-level Overview 

During the period under review, the Authority successfully conducted research and provided 
recommendations and advice to the Minister on the NSF Strategic Funding Framework 2021-
2025, the COVID-19 Economic Reconstruction and Recovery Skills Strategy, and the NSDS 
III Implementation Report 2019/20. Two studies were also commissioned by the Authority, 
in collaboration with the DHET and the BANKSETA, to evaluate respectively, the SETA 
governance landscape and the NSF achievements during the period 2014 to 2020. Both 
reports were approved by the Minister.

Through the SETA Planning Documents Review Panel and with the support of the DHET 
SETA Support Directorate and a SETA Panel Reference Group, the Authority also successfully 
reviewed the SETAs’ planning documents to improve quality and provided developmental 
feedback to the SETAs throughout the planning and reporting cycle. Feedback and reports 
were provided to the SETAs and submitted to the DHET for further consideration. Furthermore, 
the Authority established a SETA Performance Monitoring, Evaluation, and Support System, 
and convened meetings with the SETAs to foster deeper understanding of the governance 
and performance achievements and challenges of the SETAs. The specific SETAs reached 
during the period under review included the CETA, INSETA, MICT SETA and Services SETA, 
with areas engaged on including skills development policy matters, the NSDS implementation, 
outcomes, and impact, Sector Skills Plans achievements and challenges, governance matters 
including successes and challenges, plans to contribute to the Economic Reconstruction and 
Recovery Plan (ERRP), and the impact of COVID-19. 

During the 2021/21 financial year, the Authority also had the opportunity to collaborate with 
the United Nations Development Programme (UNDP) and provide oversight support towards 
the study on assessing the Skills Gap in South Africa. The collaboration sought to better 
understand the challenges to mainstream youth that are Not in Employment, Education or 
Training (NEET), and identify practical and implementable solutions to help alleviate some of 
the NEET challenges. The Authority further partnered with the print media on hosting a series 
of webinars to engage audiences on how the COVID-19 pandemic is impacting education, 
skills development, and training in South Africa. The Authority used the COVID-19 webinar 
series to engage and empower PSET stakeholders. Additionally, the Stakeholder Management 



NATIONAL SKILLS AUTHORITY - ANNUAL REPORT 2020/216

Framework and Provincial Roundtable Concept Document to enable discussions in all the 
provinces were produced and approved by the Authority and speaking and briefing notes 
were drafted for NSA engagements. Additionally, the NSA Skills Conference Framework was 
produced.

Furthermore, the Authority attended Provincial Skills Development Forum (PSDF) meetings 
and provided presentations on policy updates and direction on national skills related 
policy matters and provincial skills development matters and monitored and evaluated the 
implementation of the provincial skills plans. The Authority also provided support to the 
Limpopo Premier’s Employment Growth Advisory Council (PEGAC) on the Limpopo Master 
Skills Plan and provided ongoing technical support to the Western Cape PSDF on the 
development of a Provincial Master Skills Plan (P-MSP) and the population the NSA reporting 
template, and to the Mpumalanga PSDF on the development of a P-MSP and establishment 
of PSDF structures and committees. It is noted that the PSDFs are at different stages of 
establishment and activity which is an area to be addressed by the Authority going forward.

Lastly, the work of the Authority was also successfully publicised and promoted through 
workshops, webinars, and the publication of various articles profiling our activities on the 
Leadership magazine. Media coverage for the NSA webinar series was facilitated through 
print articles and online media pre and post each webinar. The role of the NSA and skills 
development-related topics that the NSA engages on with the public, were continuously 
communicated through the NSA website and social media platforms including Twitter and 
Facebook.

Given the challenges of coming into office at the same time as a global pandemic took hold, 
I am extremely pleased to report that the Authority successfully delivered in line with our 
strategic objective and achieved 90 percent of its targets during the 2020/21 financial year.

� Appreciation and Conclusion

I would like to extend my deepest and most heartfelt appreciation to the Minister, the Director-
General, and the Deputy Director-General of the Skills Branch for their support and guidance, 
to the Authority Members for their dedication and commitment, and to the NSA Secretariat for 
their unwavering and professional support for all the Authority’s activities and to all Authority 
Members. I thank you.

____________________

Dr. Charles Nwaila 

Chairperson of the NSA
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4. OVERVIEW	BY	THE	EXECUTIVE	OFFICER	

Dr. Thabo Mashongoane

Executive Officer of the NSA

It is with great pleasure that I provide this overview of the work of the NSA Secretariat during 
the 2020/21 annual reporting period. In our role of supporting the Authority and its work, 
the Secretariat performed exceptionally well. Supporting the start of the 5th Authority whilst 
navigating the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic saw the Secretariat rising to the challenge 
and adjusting, as quickly as possible, to a new way of work whilst helping new Authority 
Members to understand their roles, the work of the NSA, and the support provided by the 
Secretariat.

During the period under review, the Secretariat focused on achieving excellence in five key 
areas: business management, corporate governance, financial management, human resource 
management, and technology management to provide efficient and effective administrative 
support services to the Authority. 

In addition to successfully delivering on the objectives underpinning the key focus areas, 
the Secretariat also successfully responded to the COVID-19 challenges and ensured the 
continuity of operations. This response included amending the NSA Constitution and related 
policies to accommodate the shift to a hybrid operating environment that included rotational 
office-based work for critical staff as and when allowed, remote-based work for staff without 
impacting operating efficiencies, and online meetings of the Authority. There were initial 
delays and challenges due to: the need to train Members on the use of virtual platforms; the 
instances where the NSA is dependent on DHET processes; and the availability of laptops 
and subsidised mobile data to enable remote work. These issues and challenges were, for the 

most part, resolved with operations running smoothly and efficiently, and as planned.

The Secretariat also successfully organised all internal and external meetings of the Authority, 
ensuring compliance with the varying levels of COVID-19 regulation. Due to the lockdown 
restrictions, face to face consultations such as roundtables and roadshows were not feasible. 
However, going forward, the NSA will look at conducting such activities virtually. 

I would like to take this opportunity to thank the Department and the Authority for their 
outstanding commitment and dedication to ensuring that the NSA successfully rose above 
our challenges. I would also like to thank the Secretariat staff for their valued support. 
They unstintingly rose to every challenge, working long hours to ensure that the Secretariat 
continued to support the Authority efficiently and effectively in its endeavours. I am most 
grateful for their support. 

_______________________

Dr. Thabo Mashongoane 

Executive Officer of the NSA
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5. STATEMENT	OF	RESPONSIBILITY

Statement of responsibility and confirmation of accuracy for the annual report 

To the best of our knowledge and belief, we confirm the following:

◊ All information and amounts disclosed throughout this annual report are correct and consistent with the annual financial statements.
◊ The annual report is complete, accurate, and free from omission.
◊ The annual report has been prepared in accordance with the guidelines on annual reports as issued by National Treasury.
◊ The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the modified cash standard and the relevant frameworks and guidelines issued by National Treasury.
◊ Through the Department: Higher Education and Training, external auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion on the annual financial statements.

In our opinion, the annual report fairly reflects the operations, the performance information, the human resources information, and the financial affairs of the National Skills Authority for the 
financial year ended 31 March 2021

           
Dr. Charles Nwaila    Ms. Olwethu Nyewe 
Chairperson of the NSA    Acting Director of the NSA
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6. STRATEGIC OVERVIEW OF THE NSA
Figure 1: NSA Vision, Mission, and Values

VISION
 

“The NSA – leading skills 
development.”

VISION
 

“The NSA – leading skills 
development.”

MISSION
 

Our mission is to provide 
strategic advice towards 

an improved national skills 
development system

VALUES
 

Committed  
motivated, diligent, passionate, and disciplined in our 

approach.
Authoritative  

self-assured and confident, ability to get message across.
Integrity  

acting in an honest, ethical, transparent, loyal, trustworthy, 
reliable manner.

Proactive  
being forward thinking, visionary, adaptive, and innovative 

in our approach.
Results  

driven – being client-focused, goal-oriented, performance-
oriented, responsive, exemplary, punctual, and productive.

Inclusive  
collaborate, participate, and consult to promote altruism 

and team spirit with stakeholders.



NATIONAL SKILLS AUTHORITY - ANNUAL REPORT 2020/2110

� NSA Strategic Framework

Figure 2: NSA Strategic Framework

Impacts

NSA VISION
Leading skills development

NSA MISSION
To provide strategic leadership in support of an improved PSET system for a capable nation

Outcomes ● SOUND MINISTERIAL STRATEGIC DECISIONS ● INCREASED ACCESS TO DEMAND-DRIVEN SKILLS ● IMPROVED SKILLS 
PROVISIONING ● ENABLING LEGISLATION / POLICY FRAMEWORK

ORGANISATIONAL 
SUSTAINABILITY

Outputs MINISTERIAL ADVICE 
PROVIDED

PSET STAKEHOLDERS 
EMPOWERED

SKILLS DEVELOPMENT 
INFLUENCED

PSET STAKEHOLDERS 
COMPLIANT

INTERNAL EXCELLENCE 
ACHIEVED

Activities

* Evaluate PSET system 
impacts

* Research
* Consult with stakeholder’s 

investigation

* Facilitate stakeholder 
capability

* Provide skills development 
information

* Harmonise stakeholder 
relations

* Partnership development

* Advocate / promote skills 
development

* Promote stakeholder 
excellence

* Networking with other 
stakeholders

* Produce value-added research 
outputs

* Monitor stakeholder 
compliance

* Monitor / evaluate 
stakeholder performance

* nvestigate complaints
* Recommend consequence 

management
* Promote best practices 

* Business management / 
leadership

* Resource management

Inputs
HUMAN CAPITAL, FUNDS, TECHNOLOGY, INFORMATION, ASSETS

NSA VALUES
Committed    |    Authoritative    |    Integrity    |    Proactive    |    Results-driven    |    Inclusive
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7.	 NSA	LEGISLATIVE	AND	OTHER	MANDATES	

� NSA – Statutory Body

The National Skills Authority (NSA) is a statutory body first established in 1999 in terms of 
Chapter 1, Section 2(a)(i) of the Skills Development Act, No. 97 of 1998 as amended (the 
Act). On 1 November 2009, following the transfer of the skills development legislation and 
functions from the Department of Labour (DoL) to the Department of Higher Education and 
Training (DHET) (Proclamation 44 of 2009), the NSA was transferred from the DoL to the 
DHET. The NSA accounts to the Minister of Higher Education, Science, and Innovation.

Established as part of “an institutional and financial framework” to achieve the purposes of 
the Act, Chapter 2, Section 5(1)(a-e) of the Act states that the functions of the National Skills 
Authority are:

a)  to advise the Minister on: (i) a national skills development policy; (ii) a national skills 
development strategy; (iii) guidelines on the implementation of the national skills 
development strategy; (iv) the strategic framework and criteria for allocation of funds 
from the National Skills Fund; and (v) any regulations to be made;

a)  to liaise with SETAs on: (i) the national skills development policy; (ii) the national skills 
development strategy; and (iii) sector skills plans;

a)  to report to the Minister on the progress made in the implementation of the national 
skills development strategy;

a)  to conduct investigations on any matter arising out of the application of this Act;

a)  to liaise with the QCTO on occupational standards and qualifications; and

a)  to exercise any other powers and perform any other duties conferred or imposed on 
the Authority by this Act.”.

Chapter 2, Section 5 of the Act further clarifies that (2) “For the purposes of investigations 
referred to in subsection (1)(d), the Authority has the prescribed powers of entry and to 
question and inspect.”, (3) “The Authority must perform its functions in accordance with this 
Act and its constitution.” And (4) “Subsection (1)(a)(iv) does not apply to regulations in respect 
of which the Minister is required to consult with the QCTO.”.

SETA Grant Regulation 4(4), promulgated by the Minister in December 2012, reduced the 
mandatory grant allocation disbursed by SETAs to employers, from 50 percent to 20 percent. 
In 2018, the Labour Appeal Court effectively set aside Regulation 4(4) (Case number: 
JA111/2018 – SETA Grant Regulation). This ruling created a gap in the legislation relating 
to disbursement of the mandatory grant as there is currently no regulation prescribing the 
allocation for the mandatory grant.

Other chapters of the Act which prescribe the functions of the NSA include:

◊ Chapter 3, Sections 9(4), 9A(1), 9A(5), 9B(1), 10A(2 and 4), 11(1)(a) and 15(1) 
which prescribe Ministerial consultation with the NSA regarding the SETAs; 

◊ Chapter 3, Section 10(1)(g)(i-iii), which prescribes SETA liaison with the NSA;
◊ Chapter 6, Section 26H(3) which prescribes QCTO liaison with the NSA;
◊ Chapter 7, Section 36 which prescribes Ministerial consultation with the NSA 

regarding regulations to be made regarding any matter which may or must be 
prescribed under the Act.

The NSA’s functions are further prescribed under Section 22(1) of the Skills Development 
Levies Act, No 9 of 1999 (SDLA) which states that: “The Minister may, in consultation with the 
Minister of Finance and after consultation with the National Skills Authority, make regulations* 
about any matter which a) may or must be prescribed in terms of this Act; and b) is necessary 
for the effective administration of this Act.”.

In 2014, the White Paper for Post School Education and Training (WP-PSET) assigned an 
additional mandate to the NSA, namely: to monitor and evaluate the performance of the 
SETAs.
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The NSA’s work is ultimately guided by the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, Act 
108 of 1996, which states under:

1. Chapter 2, section 22, that “Every citizen has the right to choose their trade, occupation 
or profession freely. The practice of a trade, occupation or profession may be regulated 
by law.”; and

2. Chapter 2, section 29, that “Everyone has the right to: a basic education, including 
adult basic education, and further education, which the State, through reasonable 
measures, must make progressively available and accessible.”.

�	 NSA	Policy	and	Strategy	Mandates

The NSDS III, as the key document guiding skills development in the country and for which 
the NSA has overarching responsibility, affirmed the role of the NSA as being ‘to advise the 
Minister on the performance against the strategy’. 

The NSDP, as the replacement to the NSDS III from April 2020, is more explicit on the role of the 
NSA describing it as being ‘to promote, advise on national skills development policy, national 
skills development strategy and reporting, and monitor and evaluate the implementation of 
the NSDP’.

The NSA’s work is also guided by other national policies and strategies governing skills 
development. Policies and strategies that provide specific guidance to the NSA include the:

◊	 National	Development	Plan	 (NDP): To promote access to education of the 
highest quality; To promote ETD and innovation systems that cater for different 
needs and produce highly skilled individuals;

◊	 New	 Growth	 Path	 (NGP): To support economic policy and the drive the 
country’s job strategy;

◊	 Industrial	Policy	Action	Plan	2013	(IPAP): To support growing industries and 
economies as identified with a skilled labour force;

◊	 Human	Resource	Development	Strategy,	2030	(HRDS,	2030): To support the 
expansion of access to quality post-schooling education and training;

◊	 White	Paper	on	Science,	Technology,	and	Innovation	(WP-STI):	To integrate 
the need for science, technology, and innovation skills in the South African 
National Skills Plan, and to improve the human capabilities development 
pipelines, and instil an innovation mind-set from basic through to tertiary 
education.

◊	 White	Paper	for	Post-School	Education	and	Training	(WP-PSET): To monitor 
and evaluate performance of the SETAs.
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8. NSA ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE 

The NSA, as per section 6 of the SDA, consists of a voting Chairperson, 
24 voting and 6 non-voting Members appointed by the Minister in 
terms of section 6(1)(a) and (2) of the Act; and a non-voting Executive 
Officer appointed in terms of Section 8.2 (a) of the Act. 

As per section 7(2)(a)(ii) of the Act, the Authority must have an 
Executive Committee and five committees. Task teams and/or ad-hoc 
committees are established as and when required for a defined period 
and for specific projects and/or investigations.

The five committees are responsible for, respectively: Stakeholder 
Capacity Building and Governance; Policy, Planning, and Research; 
SETA Performance Monitoring; Skills Development Promotion, 
Advocacy, and Marketing; and Finance and Risk.

The work of the Authority and committees is supported by the NSA 
Secretariat which, in turn, is comprised of four business units, namely: 
Finance and Administration, Capacity Building and Legal Support, 
Research, Monitoring, and Evaluation; and Skills Development 
Advocacy and Stakeholder 

Figure 3: NSA Authority and Secretariat Structure as at 31 March 2021

Minister of Higher 
Education, Science and 

Innovation

Director General: 
Department of Higher 

Education and 
Training

Deputy Director 
General: DHET Skills 

Branch

Finance and 
Administration

Capacity Building and 
Legal Support

Research, Monitoring, 
and Evaluation

Skills Development 
Advocacy and Stakeholder 

Capacity

NSA Secretariat

NSA Authority NSA Executive 
Committee

Capacity Building and 
Governance Committee

Policy, Planning, and 
Research Committee

SETA Performance 
Monitoring Committee

Skills Development 
Advocacy and Stakeholder 
Management Committee  

Finance and Risk 
Committee





PART B
PERFORMANCE	
INFORMATION



NATIONAL SKILLS AUTHORITY - ANNUAL REPORT 2020/2116

9. SITUATIONAL	ANALYSIS

�	 Service	Delivery	Environment	

During the period under review, the NSA’s service delivery environment experienced 
substantial challenges as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic and governments response. 
The four-month skill levy payment holiday coupled with job losses and business closures saw 
an approximate 33% / R6.1 billion loss in skills levy revenue to the skills system. This meant 
that all skills levy-reliant entities had to review and reprioritise their budgets including those 
for learning programmes which resulted in a concomitant reduction in the number of planned 
learner enrolments. 

The lockdown regulations also directly impacted skills provision with most providers lacking 
the systems to enable online teaching and learning. Also, few learners had the skills, facilities, 
or data to access online learning. The pandemic also exacerbated existing issues regarding 
workplace placements as companies were unable to accommodate learners. This has had a 
direct impact on the implementation of the NSDP and achievement of the projected targets.

The NSA also had to adjust its service delivery methods, with advisory activities, stakeholder 
meetings, research projects, and monitoring and evaluation all being managed and delivered 
using online technologies.

� Organisational Environment 

The organisational environment was challenging due to COVID-19, with the pandemic starting 
at a time when the new Authority Members were only two months into their term of office. 

In response to the challenges and ensuring continuity of operations, the NSA amended the 
Constitution and related policies to accommodate the shift to a hybrid operating environment 
that included rotational office-based work for critical staff as and when allowed, remote-
based work for staff without impacting operating efficiencies, and online meetings of the 
Authority. There were initial delays and challenges due to: the need to train Members on the 
use of virtual platforms; the instances where the NSA is dependent on DHET processes; and 
the availability of laptops and subsidised mobile data to enable remote work. 

These issues and challenges were, for the most part, resolved with operations running 
smoothly and efficiently, and as planned.
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10. STRATEGIC	OUTCOME	ORIENTED	GOALS

The strategic objectives that informed the NSA Strategic Plan 2020 
- 2025 and NSA Annual Performance Plan 2020/21 are: 

1. The development of the strategic plan to inform the NSA 
and committee work plans.

2. The provision of advice on the national skills development 
policies to the Minister and the making of inputs/participation 
in other DHET-related policy development processes.

3. The review of the skills development legislative framework 
to support the integration of education and training and 
the national priorities of government (inclusive of the NSF 
framework).

4. The mobilisation of skills development stakeholders such as 
business, government, community, and labour to take full 
ownership of the NSDP, 2030.

5. The provision of inputs on the Post-School Education and 
Training system which encourages society to support and 
build a developmental State focusing on rural development 
and State-owned entities.

6. The strengthening of monitoring functions particularly in 
relation to the performance and governance of the NSDP, 
2030.

7. The commissioning of research to evaluate progress made 
by the system, in particular, on the placement of learners 
in work opportunities, the growth in employment, and the 
promotion of business enterprise opportunities.

8. The promotion and communication of the work done in skills 
development through mediums such as the convening/
organising of the national skills conference.
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� NSA Programmes – Purpose, Outcomes, Strategic Objectives and KPAs

Programme Purpose Outcomes Strategic Objectives 
(Outputs) Key Performance Areas

Programme 1: Administration
To provide support services towards 
achieving internal business capacity 
within the NSA. 

Organisational 
sustainability

Business Management / 
Leadership Excellence

* Strategic positioning
* Structuring
* Business performance management
* Organisational culture development
* Corporate communications / branding

Corporate Governance 
Excellence

* Risk management 
* Legal
* Internal audit
* Compliance management
* Secretariat support

Human Resources 
Management Excellence

* Resources management
* Human resource management

Financial Management 
Excellence

* Financial management
* Fund management

Technology Management 
excellence

* ICT management
* Information / knowledge management

Programme 2: Policy, 
Planning and Research

To provide national skills development 
policy instruments advice

Sound ministerial strategic 
decisions Ministerial advice provided * Policy instrument research

* Policy instrument development support
Programme 3: SETA 
Performance Monitoring and 
Evaluation

To provide national skills development 
system performance information 
through monitoring and evaluation.

Improved skills 
provisioning

PSET stakeholder oversight 
provided

* Skills development strategy implementation 
information

* SETA performance information
Programme 4: Skills 
Development Advocacy and 
Stakeholder Management

To promote skills development and 
build stakeholder capacity

Increased access to 
demand-driven skills

Skills development 
influenced

* Skills development advocacy

PSET stakeholders 
empowered

* Partnership development including social dialogue 
and stakeholder capacity development

* Stakeholder relations management
Programme 5: Stakeholder 
Capacity Building and SETA 
Governance

To build stakeholder capacity and 
ensure good SETA governance

Enabling legislative / policy 
framework 

PSET stakeholders 
empowered

* Percentage of planned stakeholder skills capacity 
building programmes conducted

* Number of reports on constituency capacity 
building and advocacy allocations produced

* Percentage planned PSDF support provided 
(technical and meeting logistical)
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The NSA planned to deliver on five programmes during the year under review as outlined in Figure 4 below.

Figure 4: NSA Strategic Programmes

The assessment of programme performance is done against achievements of the planned annual targets. Achievement is categorised as per Figure 5 below according to the performance 
ratings against all indicators for each of the five programmes.

Figure 5: Performance Rating Criteria

� \Programme 1: Administration 

Programme 1: Purpose

The purpose of the Administration Programme is to provide administrative support services to the Authority and Secretariat including: 

• Business management/leadership excellence,
• Corporate governance excellence,
• Financial and fund management excellence,
• Human resource management excellence, and
• Technology management excellence.

11. PERFORMANCE	INFORMATION	BY	PROGRAMME	

PROGRAMME	1
Administration

NOT ACHIEVED
0	-	49%

PARTIALLY ACHIEVED
50%	-	74%

ALMOST ACHIEVED
75%	-	99%

ACHIEVED
100%

EXCEEDED
101%	>

PROGRAMME	2
Policy, Planning, and Research

PROGRAMME	3
SETA Performance Monitoring 

and Evaluation

Programme	4
Skills Development Advocacy and 

Stakeholder Management Committee  

PROGRAMME 5
Stakeholder Capacity Building 

and SETA Governance
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� Programme 1: Outcome, Outputs, Performance Indicators, Planned Targets and Actual Achievements

Outcome Outputs Performance	Indicator
2020/21	
Planned	
Target

2020/21	Actual	
Achievement Deviation

Actual 
Achievement 
ratings

Comment

Organisational 
sustainability

Business 
management/ 
leadership 
excellence

Percentage employee 
satisfaction rating

45% 45% Target 
Achieved 

100% An employee survey was done and 
completed.

Number of business plans 
provided within prescribed 
time (strategic plan, APP, 
AOP) 

3 3 Target 
Achieved

100% Strategic Plan, Annual 
Performance Plan and Operational 
Plan were completed in 
September 2020.

Corporate 
governance 
excellence

Number of Authority 
meetings

4 4 Target 
Achieved

100% All meetings were held virtually 
due to COVID-19.

Number of Authority 
Committee meetings

24 24 Target 
Achieved

100% All four meetings per Committee 
took place as planned. 

Number of Authority 
assessments conducted 
(self-review and 
independent review)

1 0 Target not 
achieved

0% The process of appointing a 
consultant to conduct the Board 
review started before end of the 
financial year.

Number of annual reports 
produced

1 1 Target 
Achieved

100% NSA 2019/20 annual report 
produced.

Number of risk 
management reports 
produced

1 2 Target 
exceeded

200% Two risk management reports were 
produced.

Percentage of planned 
policies reviewed

100% 100% Target 
achieved-

100% Eligibility criteria for nomination to 
the Authority;
NSA Code of Conduct; 
NSA remuneration policy; and 
Guidelines for NSA committees.
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Outcome Outputs Performance	Indicator
2020/21	
Planned	
Target

2020/21	Actual	
Achievement Deviation

Actual 
Achievement 
ratings

Comment

Percentage legal support 
provided as required

100% 100% Target 
achieved-

100% Legal opinion and advice on how 
the NSA can deal with the use 
of its logo by the third parties, 
considering its legal status and 
the re-registration of the NSA logo 
onto the name of the DHET.

Financial 
management 
excellence

Percentage compliance to 
PFMA (including creditor 
age, variance on budget 
spent, financial reporting, 
etc.)

New 
indicator
(100% in 
21/22)

100% Target 
achieved

100% One compliance report was 
produced.

Human resource 
management 
excellence

Percentage of approved 
positions filled

72% 58% Target partially 
achieved

80.5% One vacancy was filled through 
an internal transfer from the DHET 
during the financial year.

Number of performance 
reviews

2 2 Target 
achieved

100% Mid-term review and annual 
performance review.

Technology 
management 
excellence

Number of website updates 
frequency

12 12 Target 
achieved

100% The NSA website was updated 
monthly.
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� Programme 2: Policy, Planning and Research

Programme 2: Purpose

The purpose of this programme is to provide advice on national skills development policy instruments. In support of this goal the following objectives are pursued: 

• To provide policy instrument research. 
• To provide policy instrument development support.
Programme 2: Outcome, Outputs, Performance Indicators, Planned Targets, and Actual Achievements

Outcomes Outputs Performance 
Indicator

2020/21 Planned 
Target

2020/21 Actual 
Achievement

Deviation Actual 
achievement 
ratings

Comment

Sound ministerial 
strategic decisions

Ministerial advice 
provided

Number of 
implementation 
progress reports 
produced on Ministerial 
recommendations

New indicator

(1 in 21/22)
1 Target 

achieved
100% The NSA received feedback on 

Ministerial recommendations 
and developed a tool for 
tracking recommendations.

Percentage of approved 
research projects 
implementation 
milestones met

New indicator
(100% in 21/22)

100% Target 
achieved

100% The advice reports on the 
SETA Governance and NSF 
Evaluation studies were 
approved by Minister.

Percentage of research 
projects results 
disseminated

New indicator
(100% in 21/22)

100% Target 
achieved

100% The NSA conducted two 
workshops for dissemination of 
the SETA and NSF studies.

Percentage of planned 
skills development 
policy evaluation 
projects milestones met 

New indicator
(80% in 21/22)

100% Target 
exceeded

125% The NSA completed the two 
planned projects.

Percentage of perceived 
value of NSA research 
outputs per case

New indicator
(60% in 21/22)

0 Target not 
achieved

0% The NSA was not able to 
conduct a stakeholder 
perception review/survey to 
assess the value of the studies.

Number of collaborative 
initiatives concluded on 
research projects

1 1 Target 
achieved

100% The NSA established 
a research partnership 
with BANKSETA on SETA 
Governance study and NSF on 
the NSF Evaluation study.
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� Programme 2: Highlights

Ministerial Advice

• NSF Strategic Funding Framework 2021 - 2025

◊ The NSA provided advice to the Minister on the draft National Skills Fund (NSF) 
Strategic Funding Framework for the period 2021 to 2025. The framework 
outlines the strategic priorities funding approaches that will steer the allocation 
of the NSF funding over this period.

◊ The NSA found the framework to be overall inclusive of the urgent and important 
priorities facing the country’s skills development needs for the next five years.

• COVID-19 Economic Reconstruction and Recovery Skills Strategy 

◊ The NSA received the draft Covid-19 Economic Reconstruction and Recovery 
Skills Strategy (ERR Skills Strategy), which is the DHET response to support the 
Economic Reconstruction and Recovery Plan (ERRP) for the sector. 

◊ The NSA supported the implementation of the ERR Skills Strategy and provided 
recommendations to address the limitations such as the formulation of 
interventions. The NSA also recommended adjustments prior to implementation, 
to ensure that the skills development provisioning is optimized.

• NSDS III Implementation Report 2019/20

◊ The NSDS is the overarching strategic guide for skills development in South 
Africa in terms of section 5(1)(a)(ii) of the Skills Development Act (SDA), 1988 
(Act No 97 of 1988) as amended. 

◊ The NSA observed that the report indicated areas of concern regarding SETA 
governance.

◊ These observations included that not all SETAs disclosed board performance 
in their annual reports, as per the King IV. Furthermore, many SETAs AA 
compositions were not in line with the SETA Constitutions in relation to the total 
number of required AA Members. 

◊ The NSA further observed that Board remuneration was largely influenced by 
an excessive number of Board meetings.

SETA Governance Study

◊ The National Skills Authority (NSA) in collaboration with the Department of 
Higher Education and Training (DHET) and the Banking Sector Education 
and Training Authority (BANKSETA) commissioned a study to evaluate the 
governance landscape in SETAs for the period 2014 to 2020. The purpose of 
the study was to:

◊ Investigate the implementation of the SETA Governance Framework, Policies 
and related Guidelines;

◊ Identify successes and challenges in implementation and make 
recommendations for improvement; and

◊ Assess the effectiveness and efficiency of SETA Governance.

Study Findings

• Survey of Views on SETAs 

◊ The results of the survey indicated consensus that SETAs are essential, 
however there are mixed opinions on whether SETAs are currently fulfilling 
their purpose or mandate. There were strong views that the current obligations 
expected of SETAs are reasonable, but respondents were of the view that the 
SETA Accounting Authorities (AA) perform their duties and followed the relevant 
prescripts and had fulfilled their obligations in terms of their Constitutions. 
However, when it came to implementing the Sector Skills Plan, liaising with the 
NSA, and appointing staff necessary for performance, respondents were less 
confident regarding the performance if the SETAs. The study further revealed 
that the purpose of the SETAs could be better aligned, that structural and 
process changes are required, and that the value chain needs streamlining. 

• Study of SETAs Governance Charters

◊ The study found that most SETAs made little reference to the current version of 
the King code and noted that the SETAs would benefit from an analysis of their 
Constitution, governance charter, and policy documents to ensure compliance 
with the most current set of principles and guidelines.
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◊ The independence of Accounting Authority (AA) Members, which is 
compromised by issues of constituency bias, was identified as a concern. 
This lack of independence is contrary to the essence of effective corporate 
governance, where Board Members are obliged to act in the best interests of the 
entity regardless of how they came to be nominated or appointed to the Board. 
Further factors that compromise independence were stated to be as follows: 
Members lacking the required competencies; interference, and overreach into 
the operations of the SETA; Members representing their constituency and 
not the SETA; poor relations between Chairpersons and Boards; inadequate 
separation between governance and management; and conflicts of interest not 
being declared.  

• Other concerns identified regarding the AA governance practices included, 
Board evaluations not being done annually, and a lack of independent evaluations 
being conducted. Where evaluations did take place, there was a lack of action on 
recommendations made. However, where recommendations were acted upon, 
significant improvements were noted for AA functioning, human resource management 
practices, and financial and operational controls. The main obstacles of following up 
on Board recommendations appeared to be related to the short period of tenure of AA 
Members.

• Study of the Structure of SETA Accounting Authorities

◊ The structure of SETAs provides for the nomination of Members by sectors 
and constituencies.  This has the advantage of allowing the sector and/or 
constituency stakeholders to identify and inform on their skills requirements 
within the SETA, but this also has disadvantages. The balance, or number of 
nominees on the SETA AAs was raised as a concern, i.e., the lack of diversity 
as more Board Members represent organised employers and organised labour 
than other constituencies. The AA composition should avoid undermining the 
creation of an appropriate balance of knowledge, skills, experience, diversity, 
and independence. In this regard, consideration should be given to more 
industry specialists and educationalists to be nominated to some of the SETAs 
to avoid overrepresentation by one constituency over others.

◊ Furthermore, the study identified a need for the formation of a nominations 
committee to oversee and manage the nomination process of AA Members. 
The SDA does not set out minimum requirements for appointment to a SETA 
AA. A nomination process with a proper selection procedure is required 
whereby the nomination committee will ensure nominees meet the minimum 
requirements and are knowledgeable about the sector. This will ensure that 
the nomination process is fair, transparent, and free from undue influence. 
The study further found that SETAs that are too large, become unwieldly, and 
inefficient.  Therefore, the optimal composition of a SETA AA proportionate to 
its size and scope should be considered.

◊ It was observed that many SETAs had separated the risk and audit function 
by establishing two committees to attend/focus on each function separately. 
However, to ensure optimal oversight over risk and audit issues, there is a need 
to combine the two committees into a Risk and Audit Committee. Lastly, it was 
found that the Executive Committees of the AAs should be more focused with 
clear Terms of Reference to avoid operationalizing the AA mandate into the 
management domain.

NSF Evaluation Study

• The NSA commissioned a study to evaluate the NSF and its achievements between 
2014 and 2020 with a specific focus on the following objectives:

◊ To assess the extent to which the NSF’s ten strategic objectives were achieved;
◊ To assess the extent to which the identified beneficiaries benefited;
◊ To assess the efficiency and effectiveness of NSF interventions;

• To assess the NSF’s programme sustainability in addressing government priorities; 
and 

• To identify gaps and challenges and provide recommendations for improvement. 
The study commenced in April 2020 and was conducted over four phases as summarised in 
Table 1 overleaf.
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Table 1: NSF Evaluation Study – Findings and Recommendations Summary

Phase Findings Recommendations

* Phase One – 
Priority Skills 
Development 
Focus

* 
* Phase Three 

– Targeted 
Beneficiaries Skills 
Development 
Focus (Rural, 
SMME, 
Cooperatives, and 
Community-based)

* The study indicated that employment found by the learners was not always 
in line with the training provided (25% were not working in line with their 
training) or suitable. 

* There is no collaboration between directorates which often leads to 
miscommunication and the duplication of work between the directorates. 

* There seems to be a mismatch between what informs priority occupations 
for the NSF and what SETAs perceive to be priority occupations, pertaining 
to strategic objective 1, skills development towards priority occupations.

* It was expressed in both phases of the study that the turn-around time from 
identification of projects and required qualifications to implementation takes 
very long.

* The NSF should be capacitated with increased internal resources. 
* The NSF should improve its relationship with SETAs to better understand the 

occupations and skills identified as scarce and in high demand to address the 
mismatch between what informs priority occupations for the NSF and what 
SETAs perceive to be priority occupations.

* There must be a review, or an observation of the programmes delivered in 
each province or region, to address the different demands each province 
might have, in terms of infrastructural needs and opportunities. 

* Tracer studies should be done to ensure that the Department and the NSF 
monitor the completion of their training programmes. 

* There must be collaboration between directorates, to ensure absence 
of miscommunication and prevent the duplication of work between the 
directorates. 

* Phase Two – 
Worker Education 
Projects

* Employers fail to see why they must implement training to enhance skills and 
employees fail to see why they need training.

* Employees experienced challenges with logistical arrangements, travelling, 
and venues.

* Shop stewards experienced challenges with attending workshops due to 
refusal by employers to take time off work. The implication of this is that the 
programme is not able to reach all workers that it is intended for. 

* There was a repetition of courses by employees because of weak project 
management capacity. As a result the budget was put under pressure. 

* There is a tendency by some shop stewards to treat the attendance of 
workshops as a ‘leisure outing’ leading to the failure to properly participate 
in the workshop and/or make submissions of tasks/assignments post the 
workshop. This issue is supported by NACTU which states in the close-
out report that, “over the years we realized that workshop programmes 
degenerate to talk-shops if there were no targeted follow-up programme that 
sought to implement the outcomes of the workshop”. 

* There are instances of shop stewards refusing to write or sign workplace 
skills plans or employment equity reports. 

* The ETDP SETA indicated that there was a lack of financial resources, 
however, no efforts were made to obtain funding. 

* The NSF and NSA should reach agreement on how funds can be better used 
to achieve greater buy-in and improved capacity within the unions. 

* The Worker Education policies should be reviewed, including the 
discontinuation of hosting workshops in expensive hotels to prevent the 
workshops being used for leisure purposes.

* In the long term, the ways in which Workers Education is funded must be 
clearer. This is due to the view articulated during the interviews that it was 
‘the role of the NSF to fund WE’. It is therefore of utmost importance that 
an understanding is created that Trade Unions are responsible for funding 
human resource development for their staff and for the training of their 
representatives. 
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Phase Findings Recommendations

Phase Four – 
Supporting and 
Implementing System 
Focus

* There are challenges with the imbalance between colleges and universities. 
In this regard, it was noted that focus favoured the university sector. 

* The PSET system is unable to accommodate individual demand. 
* The linkage between the students and employers needs to be improved. 

There needs to be a better response to the needs of employers, and 
graduates need to be prepared for employment. 

* There are challenges with the quality of education offered in the post school 
learning and training system. 

* The NSF’s current partners in supporting it to implement its various projects 
and programmes, including the NSA, are constrained in terms of internal 
capacity, 

* The NSA should work in collaboration with different constituencies such 
as but not limited to the universities, TVET colleges, community colleges, 
government, and industry to plan and implement interventions that address 
issues pertaining to skills and human resources development in the country. 

* The weak linkage between students and employers should be addressed 
by pursuing the involvement of employers in the post-school education and 
training space to create workplace training opportunities. 

* To address the current human resources capacity constraints characterizing 
the NSF, the DHET should immediately pursue the full implementation of the 
new NSF organisational structure, including the filling of all vacant posts. 

* The NSF management, supported by the DHET authorities, should 
immediately finalise the implementation of all outstanding key ICT needs 
including, among others, the finalisation of the Microsoft Dynamics ICT 
system and the development of the new NSF website. Tailored and 
complementary ICT solutions should also be considered for different NSF 
directorates on a case-by-case basis.

* The NSF, through its PSET system capacity-building interventions, 
should prioritise the capacity building of DHET entities that are 
involved in supporting it to implement its various projects and 
programmes. 
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�	 Programme	3:	SETA	Performance	Monitoring	and	Evaluation

Programme 3: Purpose

To provide national skills development system performance information through monitoring, evaluation, and reporting.

Programme 3: Outcome, Outputs, Performance Indicators, Planned Targets, and Actual Achievements

Outcome Outputs Performance 
Indicator

2020/21 Planned Target 2020/21 Actual 
Achievement

Deviation Actual 
achievement 
ratings

Comments

Improved skills 
provisioning

PSET 
stakeholder 
oversight 
provided

Number of SETA 
performance analyses 
conducted  

New indicator
(4 in 21/22)

4 Target Achieved 100% Four SETA 
performance 
analysis reports 
produced.

Number of SETA 
performance evaluation 
projects conducted

New indicator
(1 in 21/22)

0 Target not achieved 0% This is a new 
indicator which 
required more time 
to be developed.
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Programme 3: Highlights
SETA Planning Documents Review 

In October 2019, the NSA approved, with the support and approval of the Minister, the re-
appointment of the SETA Planning Documents Review Panel for a period of two years. The 
SETA Panel was re-appointed to review SETA planning documents, including Sector Skills 
Plans (SSP), Annual Performance Plans (APP), Strategic Plans (SP) and Annual Reports 
(AR). The intention of this process is to review the governance of SETAs and the plans and 
reports produced by the SETAs with the intention being to improve quality and to provide 
developmental feedback to SETAs throughout the planning and reporting cycle. 

Considering the NSA capacity challenges as well as the need to provide effective coordination 
and support, the DHET SETA Support Directorate undertook to project-manage and coordinate 
the work of the panel. Furthermore, and to support and guide the work of the panel, a SETA 
Panel Reference Group comprised of the NSA Secretariat and the DHET was also established 
to engage and agree on the evaluation criteria and reports produced by the panel. 

Feedback and reports were provided by the panel in December 2020, and in January 2021 on 
the SETA Planning Documents. The NSA subsequently submitted the report to the DHET for 
further consideration.

SETA Engagements and Liaison

The NSA has set up a performance monitoring, evaluation, and support system for all SETAs 
as mandated by the Act, the NSDS III, and the WP-PSET. To have direct engagement with 
the SETAs, the NSA convenes an inclusive meeting with all SETA principals once or twice a 
year to foster deeper understanding of the governance and performance achievements and 
challenges of the SETAs. 

During the 2020/21 financial year, the NSA met with four SETAs, namely, the CETA, INSETA, 
MICT SETA and Services SETA. The Authority engaged the SETAs on the following areas: Skills 
development policy matters; NSDS (implementation, outcomes, and impact); Sector Skills 
Plans (achievements and challenges); Governance matters (success and challenges); plans 
to contribute to the Economic Reconstruction and Recovery Plan (ERRP); and the impact of 
COVID-19. Given the outbreak of the COVID 19 pandemic, the Authority resolved to hold all 
its meetings virtually using online platforms (the mode of the meeting will be revised pending 
the easing-off of lockdown regulations). This will fast-track engagements with as many SETAs 
as possible within the financial year. The online platforms also provided an opportunity for the 
NSA to play an improved oversight role on skills development matters, especially with regards 
to the implementation of the Skills Development Act and the NSDP, 2030. 
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 � Programme	4:	Skills	Development	Advocacy	and	Stakeholder	Management

Programme 4: Purpose

The purpose of this programme is to promote skills development and build stakeholder capacity. In support of this goal, the following objectives are pursued: 

• Skills development advocacy;
• Partnership development (including stakeholder capacity development); and
• Stakeholder relations management. 
Programme 4: Outcome, Outputs, Performance Indicators, Planned Targets, and Actual Achievements

Outcome Outputs Performance Indicator 2020/21 
Planned 
Target

2020/21 
Actual 
Achievement

Deviation Actual achievement 
ratings

Comment

Increased access 
to demand-driven 
skills

Skills development influenced Number of advocacy 
/ awareness creation 
programmes concluded

New 
indicator
(4 in 21/22)

4 Target achieved 100% NSA Advocacy 
Implementation Plan 
produced 
NSA webinar reports 
produced.
M&E Workshop

Number of new skills 
development partnership 
agreements concluded

New 
indicator
(1 in 21/22)

2 Target exceeded 200% The NSA partnered 
with the United 
Nations Development 
Programme (UNDP), to 
understand and address 
the challenges of South 
African Youth Not in 
Employment, Education 
or Training (NEET), 
and the print media on 
hosting a series of NEET 
webinars.

PSET stakeholders 
empowered

Percentage of planned 
stakeholder engagement 
events conducted

New 
indicator
(70% in 
21/22)

70% Target achieved 100% NSA Stakeholder 
Framework produced.
NSA RoundTable 
Concept Document 
produced.
NSA Skills Conference 
Framework produced.



NATIONAL SKILLS AUTHORITY - ANNUAL REPORT 2020/2130

Stakeholder Engagement 

• The NSA engaged and empowered PSET stakeholders during the webinar series on 
the impact of COVID-19 pandemic. The Stakeholder Management Framework and 
Provincial Roundtable Concept Document to enable discussions in all the provinces 
were produced and approved by the Authority and speaking and briefing notes were 
drafted for NSA engagements. Additionally, the NSA Skills Conference Framework 
was produced.

� Programme 4: Challenges

Due to the lockdown restrictions, face to face consultations such as roundtables and 
roadshows were not feasible, however going forward the NSA will look at conducting such 
activities virtually. The current COVID-19 regulations prohibited large gatherings, and this 
prevented the NSA from conducting face to face interactions i.e., consultations, round tables 
etc.

� Programme 4: Highlights

Skills Development Advocacy

• The NSA successfully publicised and advocated for the work of the NSA through 
workshops, webinars, and the publication of various articles profiling the NSA 
activities on the Leadership magazine. Media coverage for the NSA webinar series 
was facilitated through print articles and online media pre and post each webinar. 
The role of the NSA, and skills development related topics that the NSA engages on 
with the public, were continuously communicated through the NSA website and social 
media platforms including Twitter and Facebook.

Skills Development Partnership

• The NSA collaborated with the United Nations Development Programme (UNDP) and 
provided oversight support towards the study on assessing the Skills Gap in South 
Africa. The collaboration sought to achieve a better understanding of the challenges 
to mainstream youth that are Not in Employment, Education or Training (NEET) and 
identify practical and implementable solutions to help alleviate some of the NEET 
challenges. The NSA also partnered with the print media on hosting a series of webinars 
to engage audiences on how the COVID-19 pandemic is impacting education, skills 
development, and training in South Africa.
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� Programme 5: Stakeholder Capacity Building and SETA Governance

Programme 5: Purpose

• The purpose of this programme is to ensure stakeholder capacity development and sound stakeholder engagement for skills development. In support of this goal, the following 
objectives are pursued:

• Capacity building support for NSA and key stakeholders including PSDFs and SETAs;
• Stakeholder liaison and assistance on NSDS implementation (PSDFs, NSF, SETAs etc.);
• National growth and development strategies contribution including NSF funding framework; and
• SETA governance.

Programme 5: Outcome, Outputs, Performance Indicators, Planned Targets, and Actual Achievements

Outcome Outputs Performance 
Indicator

2020/21 Planned Target 2020/21 
Actual 
Achievement

Deviation Actual achievement 
ratings

Comments

Enabling 
legislative / 
policy framework

PSET 
stakeholders 
empowered

Percentage of 
planned stakeholder 
skills capacity 
building programmes 
conducted

New indicator
(70% in 21/22)

70% Target achieved 100% The NSA attended an 
induction of all SETA 
Boards in October 2020. 
Furthermore, the NSA 
attended the induction of 
11 individual SETA AAs.

Number of reports 
on constituency 
capacity building and 
advocacy allocations 
produced

4 4 Target
Achieved

100% Four CCBA reports 
produced.

Percentage planned 
PSDF support 
provided (technical 
and meeting 
logistical)

New indicator
(80% in 21/22)

100% Target Achieved 100% Attended 6 PSDF 
meetings and provided 
presentations on policy 
updates and direction 
on national skills related 
policy matters.
Made presentations on 
the draft PSDF Guidelines 
and Framework.
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� Programme 5: Highlights

NSA Support to the Provincial Skills Development Forum

The NSA is responsible for advising the PSDFs on provincial skills development and monitoring and evaluating the implementation of the Provincial Skills Plans. The NSA provided the following 
support to the PSDFs during the 2020/21 financial year:

• Assisted with the development of the Provincial Master Skills Plan. The plan has been adopted;
• Provided catering support for meetings;
• Attended meetings and provided presentations on policy updates and direction on national skills-related policy matters;
• Provided a presentation on the Limpopo Master Skills Plan to the Premier’s Employment Growth Advisory Council (PEGAC);
• Provided ongoing technical support for the development of a Provincial Master Skills Plan for the Western Cape (WC) and Mpumalanga provinces;
• Held a zoom meeting with the Members from WC on 25 November 2020. The purpose of the meeting was to provide clarity/direction to the coordinators of the WC Province on 

populating the NSA reporting template; and
• Presented examples of PSDF structures to the Mpumalanga PSDF that may be used and proposed the establishment of various committees. These, however, have yet to be 

established.
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Table 2: Key Challenges Identified by PSDF’s per Province

Province name Key issues and/or challenges identified by Provinces 

Eastern Cape 	 Lack of constituency representation within the province;
	 Organisations send junior representatives to attend meetings, who are unable to make a meaningful contribution to the meetings.

Free State 	 The lack of attendance from municipalities as well as Community-Based Organisations or Representative.

Gauteng 	 The Master Skills Plan was duly adopted, but progress in respect of the plan is not being monitored. The province was active and functional 
previously but was inactive over the last year due to internal issues. The PSDF requested the NSA to assist as follows:

o Need to review their strategy/plan to align with the NSDS/NSDP;
o NSA to assist with model structures and share successful structures of other provinces;
o NSA representatives and stakeholders to be part of the structure for the PSDF to become active again; and
o Funding for venue and refreshments for meetings to be held.

Kwa-Zulu Natal  	 Lack of participation by the Private Sector, Community-Based Organisations, Organised Labour, and SETAs in the PSDF.

Limpopo 	 The Limpopo PSDF is not effective and functional. The NSA has been sending correspondence to obtain progress reports, however, a response 
from this province is awaited.

Mpumalanga 	 One of the biggest challenges for Mpumalanga is the implementation and interpretation of policies and strategies.
	 A concern was raised about underreporting in the province and structures do not know who to report to. 
	 Business was not well represented at the meetings

Northern Cape 	 One of the challenges identified is that the regional SETA offices have no capacity, and most matters are referred to the Johannesburg offices.
	 Business and Labour need to play a role within the province. 

North-West 	 There is no collaboration between all existing structures that deal with skills development within the province.

Western Cape 	 Requested the NSA to join the SETA-TVET Forum.
	 Trying to create a platform to focus on needs at a regional level;
	 Seeking assistance in getting all the social partners in the same room to address skills development issues in the province.





PART C
GOVERNANCE 
INFORMATION
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12. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Corporate governance embodies processes and systems by which public entities are directed, controlled, and held to account. In addition to legislative requirements based on a public entity’s 
enabling legislation, and the Companies Act, corporate governance with regard to public entities is applied through the precepts of the Public Finance Management Act (PFMA) and run-in 

tandem with the principles contained in the King’s Report on Corporate Governance. Parliament, the Executive, and the Board of the NSA are responsible for corporate governance.
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13. AUTHORITY	MEMBERS

� NSA Composition

The National Skills Authority Board (Authority) is the highest governing structure of the National Skills Authority. It retains full and effective control over the NSA and ensures that it delivers on 
its mandate. The fifth Authority was appointed by the Minister of Higher Education and Training in February 2020 for the period 2020 to 2025. The composition and constitution of the Authority 
is prescribed under sections 6 and 7 of the Skills Development Act.

Figure 6: NSA Authority Membership Composition

Chairperson 
Voting member

Education and Skills 
Development Providers

4 voting members
(including Deputy Chairperson)

Organised Labour 
5 voting members

(including Deputy Chairperson)

The State
5 voting members 

(including Deputy Chairperson)

Organised Business 
5 voting members

(including Deputy Chairperson)

Skills Development Experts
2 non-voting members

Employment Services Experts
2 non-voting members

NSA Executive Officer
1 Non-voting member

SAQA
1 non-voting member

QCTO
1 non-voting member

Organised Community Constituency
5 voting members

(includingDeputy  Chairperson)
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NSA	MEMBERSHIP	

Table 3: NSA Composition as at 31 March 2021

Constituency Required Members Actual Members
Chairperson Chairperson Dr Charles Nwaila (Chairperson)

NSA Executive 
Officer 1 x non-voting Member Dr Thabo Mashongoane 

The State

1 x voting Member and 
Deputy Chairperson

Mr Zamokwakhe Khuzwayo  
(Deputy Chairperson)

1 x voting Member Mr Puleng Phala

1 x voting Member Ms Jocelyn Vass

1 x voting Member Ms Rose Msiza

1 x voting Member Mr Jackey Maepa 

Organised Business

1 x voting Member and 
Deputy Chairperson

Mr Mustak Ally (Deputy 
Chairperson)

1 x voting Member Mr Tommy Oliphant

1 x voting Member Ms Pamela Ramagaga

1 x voting Member Mr Pule Mokoena

1 x voting Member Vacant 

Organised Labour

1 x voting Member and 
Deputy Chairperson

Ms Lazelle Van Kramberg (Deputy 
Chairperson)

1 x voting Member Ms Siphiwe Nxumalo

1 x voting Member Vacant (Mr Pat Mphela resigned 
22 July 2020)

1 x voting Member Mr Ashley Benjamin

1 x voting Member Mr Modupi Maile (appointed 4 
Dec2020)

Constituency Required Members Actual Members

Organised 
Community 
Constituency

1 x voting Member and 
Deputy Chairperson

Mr Thembinkosi Josopu (Deputy 
Chairperson)

1 x voting Member Dr Olwethu Sipuka 

1 x voting Member Ms Dikeledi Ntingane 

1 x voting Member Mr Nhlanhla Ndlovu

1 x voting Member Ms Sizakele Mabuza

Education and 
Skills Development 
Providers

1 x voting Member and 
Deputy Chairperson

Ms Thandeka Masondo (Deputy 
Chairperson)

1 x voting Member Mr Sanele Mlotshwa

1 x voting Member Mr Basiami Disipi

1 x voting Member Ms Cynthia Reynders 

Employment 
Services Experts

1 x non-voting Member Mr Martin Ratshivhanda 

1 x non-voting Member Ms Khani Mhlongo

SAQA 1 x non-voting Member Dr Julie Reddy 

QCTO 1 x non-voting Member Mr Vijayen Naidoo 

Skills Expert 1 x non-voting Member Mr Robert Masambo 

Skills Expert 1 x non-voting Member Vacant 
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NSA Executive Committee 

The NSA Executive Committee (EXCO) consists of six voting Members, namely the Chairperson of the Authority, the five Members appointed as Deputy Chairpersons of the Authority, and two 
non-voting Members, namely, the Executive Officer of the NSA and one Member from the Employment Services Constituency. 

Figure 7: NSA Executive Committee as at 31 March 2021

Dr Charles Nwaila
Chairperson

Mr Mustak Ally
Deputy Chairperson
Organised Business

Mr Martin Ratshivhanda
Additional Member 

 Employment Services

Ms Thandeka Masondo 
Deputy Chairperson

Education & Skills Development 
Providers

Dr Thabo Mashongoane
Executive Officer

NSA

Ms Lazelle Van Kramberg
Deputy Chairperson 
Organised Labour

Mr Zamokwakhe Khuzwayo 
Deputy Chairperson State

Mr Thembinkosi Josopu
Deputy Chairperson Community
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� NSA Committees Structure 2020 - 2021

As per section 7(2)(a)(ii) of the Act, the Authority has an Executive Committee chaired by the 
Chairperson of the NSA, and five subcommittees, each chaired by a Deputy Chairperson of 
the Authority. As outlined in Figure 8 below, the subcommittees deal with specific matters and 
stakeholder groupings, and make recommendations and provide advice and strategic input 

to the EXCO and Authority. The Finance and Risk Committee was established under the new 
Authority. Steering Committees and task teams are established as and when required for a 
defined period and for a specific purpose. 

Figure 8: NSA Committees and Functions

Deputy Chairperson: Deputy Chairperson Deputy Chairperson Deputy Chairperson Deputy Chairperson

Policy, Planning, and Research 
Committee

Skills Development Advocacy 
and Stakeholder Management 

Committee  

Stakeholder Capacity Building and 
Governance Committee

SETA Performance Monitoring 
Committee

Finance and Risk Committee

1. Identify research areas, 
innovations, and other research 
opportunities;

2. Review SDA polices, guidelines, 
and frameworks; and

3. Commission and coordinate 
overarching evaluation on 
skills planning regimes in skills 
development sector.

1. Advocate and promote for 
skills development in the PSET 
(skills development) through an 
effective communication and 
marketing framework;

2. Facilitate partnership 
development through 
stakeholder engagements and 
networking; and

3. Position NSA as the national 
skills development multi-
stakeholder body.

1. Review and revise NSA 
Constitution, governance 
documents, and any other 
relevant policy;

2. Advise on NSA governance 
matters;

3. Conduct Board reviews to 
determine effectiveness of the 
Authority and Committees;

4. Promote capacity building of the 
skills development stakeholders 
and the NSA;

5. Facilitate reskilling opportunities 
as a result of COVID-19;

6. Oversee, monitor, and evaluate 
the NSF CCBA allocation;

7. Identify and monitor SETA 
governance issues; and

8. Provide recommendations, 
observations, and advice to the 
Authority on the criteria for NSF 
funds allocation in collaboration 
with the Finance & Risk 
Committee.

1. Develop NSDS/NSDP 
Monitoring & Evaluation 
Framework;

2. Monitor NSDS/NSDP 
implementation progress and 
liaison;

3. SETA Service Level Agreements, 
Strategic Plans, Annual 
Performance Plans, and 
Scorecards;

4. Develop NSDS/NSDP 
Implementation Reporting 
Framework;

5. Liaise and collaborate with other 
NSA committees on financial, 
governance information of 
SETAs and other areas, and 
collaborate on any other matter 
with other committees relating 
to the scope of this Committee; 
and

6. Liaise and collaborate with 
HRDC, DHET, DSI, and INDLELA 
amongst others on key priority 
areas on SETAs performance.

1. Provide oversight management 
in accordance with PFMA;

2. Develop budget framework for 
the Authority;

3. Develop and monitor risk 
register for NSA;

4. Analyse audited financial 
statements of SETAs;

5. Advise the Minister on the 
strategic framework and criteria 
for allocation of funds from the 
National Skills Fund; and

6. Receive annual financial 
statements from NSF in terms of 
SDA section 29 (4)(1)(c).
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Figure 9: NSA Committees and Members

SETA PERFORMANCE 
MONITORING COMMITTEE 

POLICY, PLANNING, AND 
RESEARCH COMMITTEE 

Mr Zamokwakhe Khuzwayo
State Deputy Chairperson

Mr Mustak Ally
Organised Business
Deputy Chairperson

Ms Thandeka Masondo 
Education and Training Providers

Deputy Chairperson

Dr Charles Nwaila
Chairperson

Mr Thembinkosi Josopu
Community

Deputy Chairperson

Ms Lazelle Van Kramberg
Labour

Deputy Chairperson

Ms Lazelle Van Kramberg
Labour

Dr Olwethu Sipuka
Community

Mr Pule Mokoena
Business

Dr Julie Reddy
SAQA

Mr Vijayen Naidoo
QCTO

Mr Martin Ratshivhanda
Employment Services

Additional Member

Dr Thabo Mashongoane
Ex-officio

Ms Cynthia Reynders
Education and Training Providers

Dr Thabo Mashongoane
Ex-officio

Dr Thabo Mashongoane
Ex-officio

Ms Lorraine Mhlongo
Employment Services

Dr Thabo Mashongoane
Ex-officio

Dr Thabo Mashongoane
Ex-officio

Mr Basiami Disipi 
Education and Training Providers

Ms Dikeledi Ntingane
Community

Mr Sanele Mlotshwa
Education and Training Providers

Mr Robert Masambo
Skills Expert

Ms Rose Msiza
State

Mr Modupi Maile
Labour

Mr Tommy Oliphant
Business

Ms Cynthia Reynders
Education and Training Providers

Mr Nhlanhla Ndlovu
Community

Ms Pamela Ramagaga
Business

Mr Ashley Benjamin
Labour

Ms Jocelyn Vass
State

Ms Siphiwe Nxumalo
Labour

Mr Puleng Phala
State

Mr Jackey Maepa
State

Ms Sizakele Mabuza
Community

SKILLS DEVELOPMENT 
ADVOCACY AND 

STAKEHOLDER MANAGEMENT 
COMMITTEE  

CAPACITY BUILDING AND 
GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 

FINANCE AND RISK 
COMMITTEE 1 2 3 4 5
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 NSA Membership

Table 4: NSA  Members, Constituency and Period of Appointment

AUTHORITY MEMBERS
Member Constituency Date first appointed Term Ending
Dr Charles Nwaila (Chairperson) NSA Chairperson 27-Feb-20 31-Jan-25

Dr Thabo Mashongoane (EO) Executive Officer 27-Sep-18 Ex-officio

Ms Lazelle Van Kramberg (Deputy Chairperson) Labour 28-Jan-20 31-Jan-25

Mr Malose Pat Mphela Labour 28-Jan-20 22-Jul-20

Mr Ashley Benjamin Labour 28-Jan-20 31-Jan-25

Mr Modupi Maile Labour 4-Dec-20 31-Jan-25

Ms Siphiwe Nxumalo Labour 28-Jan-20 31-Jan-25

Mr Thembinkosi Josopu (Deputy Chairperson) Community 28-Jan-20 31-Jan-25

Mr Nhlanhla Ndlovu Community 28-Jan-20 31-Jan-25

Ms Sizakele Mabuza Community 28-Jan-20 31-Jan-25

Dr Olwethu Sipuka Community 28-Jan-20 31-Jan-25

Ms Dikeledi Ntingane Community 28-Jan-20 31-Jan-25

Mr Ally Mustak (Deputy Chairperson) Business 28-Jan-20 31-Jan-25

Mr Tommy Oliphant Business 28-Jan-20 31-Jan-25

Ms Pamela Ramagaga Business 28-Jan-20 31-Jan-25

Mr Pule Mokoena Business 28-Jan-20 31-Jan-25

Mr Zamokwakhe Khuzwayo (Deputy Chairperson) State 28-Jan-20 31-Jan-25

Mr Puleng Stephen Phala State 28-Jan-20 31-Jan-25

Ms Jocelyn Vass State 28-Jan-20 31-Jan-25

Ms Rose Msiza State 28-Jan-20 31-Jan-25

Mr Jackey Maepa State 28-Jan-20 31-Jan-25

Ms Thandeka Masondo (Deputy Chairperson) Education and Training Providers 28-Jan-20 31-Jan-25

Ms Cynthia Reynders Education and Training Providers 28-Jan-20 31-Jan-25
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AUTHORITY MEMBERS
Member Constituency Date first appointed Term Ending
Mr Sanele Mlotshwa Education and Training Providers 28-Jan-20 31-Jan-25

Mr Basiami Disipi Education and Training Providers 28-Jan-20 31-Jan-25

Experts Constituency Date first appointed Term Ending
Ms Lorraine Mhlongo Employment Services 28-Jan-20 31-Jan-25

Mr Martin Ratshivhanda Employment Services 28-Jan-20 31-Jan-25

Mr Robert Masambo Skills Expert 28-Jan-20 31-Jan-25

Mr Vijayen Naidoo QCTO 28-Jan-20 31-Jan-25

Dr Julie Reddy SAQA 28-Feb-20 31-Jan-25

�	 NSA		Members	Equity	Profile

Gender African Indian Coloured White Total
Female 8 0 2 1 11

Male 14 2 2 18

Total 22 2 4 1 29

Gender Disability Non Disability
Female 0 0

Male 2 0
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�	 NSA	Members	Meeting	Remuneration
The NSA Members are remunerated for attending  Authority and subcommittee meetings in accordance with the National Treasury Guidelines Level – Remuneration Rate (Category B1) 01 
April 2020 to 31 March 2021:

◊ Chairperson    R 4 317 per meeting
◊ Deputy Chairperson    R 3 778 per meeting
◊ Board Member    R 2 619 per meeting

Board Members are not remunerated for attendance of conferences, capacity building workshops, and training programmes as per the DPSA policy on the payment of sitting fees. State 
representatives do not claim for sitting fees. 

Tables 5 and 6 overleaf respectively summarise the Authority, Executive Committee, and Committee meeting attendance and remuneration during the 2020/21 reporting period. Remuneration 
excludes costs and expenses for meetings.
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Table 5: NSA Authority Member Meeting Attendance 2020/21

NSA MEETING ATTENDANCE
MEMBER APPOINTMENT PERIOD AUTHORITY EXCO CB FIN & RISK PAR SDPAM M&E
Dr Charles Nwaila 
(Chairperson)

01-Feb-20 31-Jan-25 15* 15 9 9 7 - 7 1 6 - 5 - 5 -

Mr Thembinkosi Josopu 
(Deputy Chairperson)

01-Feb-20 31-Jan-25 15 14 9 9 7 6 7 - 6 - 5 - 5 -

Ms Thandeka Masondo 
(Deputy Chairperson)

01-Feb-20 31-Jan-25 15 14 9 9 7 - 7 - 6 - 5 5 5 -

Ms Lazelle Van Kramberg 
(Deputy Chairperson)

01-Feb-20 31-Jan-25 15 13 9 - 7 - 7 - 6 5 5 - 5 -

Mr Ally Mustak (Deputy 
Chairperson)

01-Feb-20 31-Jan-25 15 11 9 7 7 - 7 - 6 - 5 - 5 5

Mr Zamokwakhe Khuzwayo 
(Deputy Chairperson)

01-Feb-20 31-Jan-25 15 13 9 6 7 - 7 - 6 3 5 - 5 -

Mr Ashley Benjamin 01-Feb-20 31-Jan-25 15 15 9 - 7 6 7 1 6 - 5 - 5 1

Ms Siphiwe Nxumalo 01-Feb-20 31-Jan-25 15 13 9 - 7 - 7 1 6 1 5 - 5 4

Mr Modupi Maile 04-Dec-20 31-Jan-25 15 8 9 - 7 - 7 - 6 - 5 1 5 -

Mr Malose Pat Mphela 01-Feb-20 22-Jul-20 15 5 9 - 7 - 7 - 6 - 5 3 5 -

Dr Olwethu Sipuka 01-Feb-20 31-Jan-25 15 10 9 - 7 - 7 - 6 - 5 - 5 -

Ms Dikeledi Ntingane 01-Feb-20 31-Jan-25 15 12 9 - 7 - 7 - 6 - 5 4 5 -

Mr Nhlanhla Ndlovu 01-Feb-20 31-Jan-25 15 14 9 - 7 - 7 - 6 - 5 - 5 5

Ms Sizakele Mabuza 01-Feb-20 31-Jan-25 15 8 9 - 7 - 7 5 6 - 5 - 5 1

Mr Tommy Oliphant 01-Feb-20 31-Jan-25 15 15 9 2 7 7 7 - 6 - 5 - 5 -

Mr Pule Mokoena 01-Feb-20 31-Jan-25 15 15 9 2 7 - 7 - 6 6 5 - 5 -

Ms Pamela Ramagaga 01-Feb-20 31-Jan-25 15 9 9 - 7 - 7 - 6 - 5 2 5 -

Ms Jocelyn Vass 01-Feb-20 31-Jan-25 15 11 9 - 7 - 7 5 6 - 5 - 5 1

Mr Jackey Maepa 01-Feb-20 31-Jan-25 15 7 9 - 7 3 7 - 6 - 5 - 5 -

Mr Puleng Stephen Phala 01-Feb-20 31-Jan-25 15 15 9 - 7 - 7 - 6 - 5 5 5 -

Ms Rose Msiza 01-Feb-20 31-Jan-25 15 12 9 2 7 - 7 2 6 - 5 - 5 5
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NSA MEETING ATTENDANCE
MEMBER APPOINTMENT PERIOD AUTHORITY EXCO CB FIN & RISK PAR SDPAM M&E
Ms Cynthia Reynders 01-Feb-20 31-Jan-25 15 14 9 - 7 - 7 4 6 - 5 4 5 -

Mr Sanele Mlotshwa 01-Feb-20 31-Jan-25 15 11 9 - 7 7 7 - 6 - 5 - 5 -

Mr Basiami Disipi 01-Feb-20 31-Jan-25 15 15 9 - 7 - 7 2 6 - 5 - 5 -

Ms Lorraine Mhlongo 01-Feb-20 31-Jan-25 15 13 9 - 7 - 7 - 6 - 5 5 5 -

Mr Robert Masambo 01-Feb-20 31-Jan-25 15 8 9 - 7 - 7 5 6 - 5 - 5 1

Mr Martin Ratshivhanda 01-Feb-20 31-Jan-25 15 9 9 8 7 - 7 - 6 3 5 - 5 -

Dr Julie Reddy 01-Feb-20 31-Jan-25 15 6 9 - 7 - 7 - 6 5 5 - 5 -

Mr Vijayen Naidoo 01-Feb-20 31-Jan-25 15 5 9 - 7 - 7 - 6 4 5 - 5 -

Dr Thabo Mashongoane Ex-officio Ex-officio 15 15 9 9 7 6 7 7 6 5 5 5 5 4
* The 15 Authority meetings are made up of 3 scheduled Authority meetings, 1 Special Authority meeting, 2 Authority meetings with the DHET Minister, 1 Authority meeting with NSF 
Management, 3 Strategic Planning sessions, 3 Consultation meetings with SETAs, 1 Consultation meeting with DHET on the Covid19 Recovery Skills Strategy, and 1 Focus Group discussion.
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Table 6: NSA Authority Member Meeting Attendance Remuneration 2020/21

Name Constituency Amount*
Dr Charles Nwaila Chairperson R152 189,00

Mr Thembinkosi Josopu Community (Deputy Chairperson) R69 414,00

Ms Thandeka Masondo Education and Training Providers (Deputy Chairperson) R0,00

Ms Lazelle Van Kramberg Organised Labour (Deputy Chairperson) R95 422,00

Mr Ally Mustak Organised Business (Deputy Chairperson) R59 026,00

Mr Zamokwakhe Khuzwayo** State (Deputy Chairperson) R0,00

Mr Ashley Benjamin Organised Labour R31 422,00

Ms Siphiwe Nxumalo Organised Labour R44 514,00

Mr Modupi Maile Organised Labour R0,00

Mr Malose Pat Mphela** Organised Labour R0,00

Dr Olwethu Sipuka Community R22 254,00

Ms Dikeledi Ntingane Community R28 803,00

Mr Nhlanhla Ndlovu Community R28 803,00

Ms Sizakele Mabuza Community R31 098,00

Mr Tommy Oliphant Organised Business R37 965,00

Mr Pule Mokoena Organised Business R53 679,00

Ms Pamela Ramagaga Organised Business R0,00

Ms Jocelyn Vass** State R0,00

Mr Jackey Maepa** State R0,00

Mr Puleng Stephen Phala** State R0,00

Ms Rose Msiza** State R0,00

Ms Cynthia Reynders Education and Training Providers R0,00

Mr Sanele Mlotshwa** Education and Training Providers R0,00

Mr Basiami Disipi Education and Training Providers R60 225,00
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Name Constituency Amount*
Ms Lorraine Mhlongo Employment Services R40 584,00

Mr Robert Masambo** Skills Experts R0,00

Mr Martin Ratshivhanda** Employment Services R0,00

Dr Julie Reddy** SAQA R0,00

Mr Vijayen Naidoo** QCTO R0,00

Dr Thabo Mashongoane** Executive Officer (Ex-officio) R0,00
Total R755 398,00

*Board Members are remunerated according to category B1 Board remuneration of the National Treasury

**State representatives do not claim for sitting fees
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14. RISK	MANAGEMENT

�  NSA Risk Analysis

The NSA is committed to the optimal management of risks associated with its functioning, environment, and people, with the NSA Authority having overall responsibility for strategic and 
operational risk management. As part of managing its risk, the NSA has defined the material issues that can potentially impact on its ability to deliver against its mandate, the associated risk 
and potential impact, and how the risks of these material issues are managed. Table 7 below provides a summary of key risks identified under the Strategic Plan 2021 – 2025.

Table 7: NSA Risks and Risks Mitigation Summary

Outcomes Key Risk Risk Mitigation
Sound Ministerial strategic decisions Poor quality research output leading to recommendations not timeously 

accepted / decreased credibility for NSA
Robust terms of research reference

Impact of rotation of change of Ministers on NSA NSA advice / recommendations based on principle

Increased access to demand-driven skills Poor data management causing NSA to make poor recommendations and lose 
credibility

Ensure consistent data management 

Impact of insufficient response to crucial skills on the NSA leading to alienating 
stakeholders

NSA to be responsive in addressing crucial skills
Promote the utilisation of responsive skill forecasting 
tools

Improved skills provisioning Lack of cooperation from stakeholders with regards to NSA recommendations 
leading to losing credibility

Implement awareness creation interventions with 
regards to NSA recommendations
Sound stakeholder management

Enabling legislative / policy framework Long lead times to give effect to steering mechanism amendments required to 
implement the strategic plan direction leading to slow / no implementation 

Employ sound project management principles in 
steering mechanism projects

Counter-productive bureaucracy slowing down operations of NSA Advocate for streamlined business processes and 
administration

Organisational sustainability Lack of NSA autonomy leading to NSA ineffectiveness Establish NSA as a resilient institution

Business continuity issues faced by NSA Early identification of business continuity risks and 
risk management action
Sound knowledge management systems

The Department supports the NSA in managing its risks and monitors the Risk Register on a quarterly basis. To ensure the NSA’s effective delivery on its strategic business objectives, 
measures were put in place to manage organisational risk. 
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15. INTERNAL CONTROL

The effectiveness of the NSA’s internal control systems is reviewed annually. The NSA relies 
on external auditors and the Department of Higher Education and Training Internal Audit 
services for internal controls. Within the NSA, internal audit controls are defined as activities 
undertaken to increase the likelihood of achieving management objectives in three areas:

◊ Efficiency and effectiveness of operations;
◊ Reliability of financial reporting; and
◊ Compliance with laws and regulations.

During the period under review, there was nothing material reported to the Authority or brought 
to the attention of the external or internal auditors, to indicate any material breakdown in the 
functioning of the internal controls and systems (which includes the internal financial controls).

16. COMPLIANCE	WITH	LAWS	AND	REGULATIONS

The NSA is committed to complying with all applicable laws and regulations and takes 
reasonable measures to ensure compliance thereof.

17.	 FRAUD	AND	CORRUPTION	

NSA has zero-tolerance to fraud and corruption. The EXCO exercises oversight over the 
affairs of the Authority. The Department of Higher Education and Training Code of Conduct is 
applicable to all employees of the NSA.

18. MINIMISING	CONFLICT	OF	INTEREST	

The NSA has and continues to update and align its policies and procedures to comply with 
the Public Administration Management Act, 2014 (Act 11 of 2014).

19. CODE	OF	CONDUCT	

The Department of Higher Education and Training Code of Conduct is applicable to 
all employees. The NSA conducts itself in a manner that is transparent and ethical. NSA 
communicates its ethics expectations to all stakeholders clearly and consistently. The 
Authority is further guided by the NSA Code of Conduct as annexed to the NSA Constitution.

20. HEALTH,	SAFETY	AND	ENVIRONMENTAL	ISSUES

The NSA is subject to the provisions of the Occupational Health and Safety Act No. 181 of 
1993, which requires employers to provide and maintain, as far as is reasonably practical, a 
workplace that is safe and without risk to the health of its employees.

The NSA’s commitment to health and safety extends to ensuring that its operations, activities, 
products, and services do not damage or place the local community or environment at risk 
of injury or illness. Employees must comply with the internal Safety, Health, and Environment 
policy and procedures. It is their responsibility to recognise hazards which may affect their 
health and safety, and the environment.



PART	D
Human Resource
Information
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21. NSA SECRETARIAT

The NSA Secretariat is responsible for providing administrative and secretariat support to the Board, managing stakeholder relationships, building stakeholder capacity, conducting research, 
managing policy, and preparing advice. As per Chapter 2, Section 8 of the Act, the NSA Secretariat is headed by an Executive Officer who reports to both the Director-General of the DHET 
and to the NSA Authority. 
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NSA Secretariat Structure

Permanent Position

Vacant Position

Contract Position

Not on approved structure

Intern

NSA Executive Officer
Thabo Mashogoane

Personal Assistant
Nobuhle Kgare

Senior Administration Officer
Thabang Letsietsa

Director 
Olwethu Nyewe (Acting)

Secretary 
Vacant

Deputy Director: Administration
Kgaugelo Sehlapelo

Deputy Director: Capacity 
Building and Legal Support 

Candice Perumalsami

Deputy Director: Research 
and M&E

Olwethu Nyewe

Deputy Director: Stakeholder 
Management

Fhedzisani Mashau

Assistant Director
Vacant

Assistant Director
Gontse Mothobi

Assistant Director: M&E
Tshepo Matlala

Assistant Director: Policy and 
Research 

Matheko Mpe
Assistant Director 

Nomfundo Ntombela 

Senior Administration Officer
Aluwani Madima

Paralegal Secretary
Tintswalo Baloyi

Senior Administration Officer
Tshegofatso Mosegedi

Senior Administration Clerk
Andreas Motsoene

Senior Administration Clerk 
Mahlatse Mkhonto

Senior Administration Clerk
Pelwana Tsambo

Senior Administration Clerk 
Nthato Kgori

Nthabeleng Matsepe
Intern

Aubrey Sekhwela
Intern

Board Secretary
Prudence Mongwe
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22. HUMAN	RESOURCES	MANAGEMENT	AND	OVERSIGHT	STATISTICS	

As a government component, the NSA Secretariat complies with the Public Service Regulations (2016) for Human Resource Management and related stipulations. In the absence of a fully 
capacitated human resource management function within the NSA, certain HR functions such as Persal administration are currently administered by the Department of Higher Education and 
Training (DHET). The NSA has also adopted the DHET HRM policies and procedures. A key strategic objective of the NSA is to ensure that it is properly capacitated. Accordingly, the NSA is 
pleased to report that in the 2020/21 reporting period 21 out of 24 positions (87.5%) were filled

�	 NSA	Secretariat	Capacity	as	at	31	March	2021

Table 8: NSA Secretariat Capacity as at 31 March 2021

# Job Title Job Status Job Encumbent Appointment Type
1 NSA Executive Officer Filled Dr Thabo Mashongoane Permanent

2 Director Vacant Olwethu Nyewe Acting

3 Deputy Director: Administration and Finance Filled Kgaugelo Sehlapelo Permanent

4 Deputy Director: Capacity Building and Legal Support Filled Candice Perumalsami Contract

5 Deputy Director: Research and M&E Filled Olwethu Nyewe Permanent

6 Deputy Director: Stakeholder Management Filled Fhedzisani Mashau Contract

7 Board Secretary Filled Prudence Mongwe Contract

8 Assistant Director: Administration Vacant

9 Assistant Director: Capacity Building and Legal Support Filled Gontse Mothobi Contract

10 Assistant Director: Policy and Research Filled Matheko Mpe Contract

11 Assistant Director: Research and M&E Filled Tshepo Matlala Permanent

12 Assistant Director: Stakeholder Management Filled Nomfundo Ntombela Contract

13 Paralegal Secretary Filled Tintswalo Baloyi Contract

14 Personal Assistant Filled Nobuhle Kgare Permanent (appointed 1st September)

15 Secretary to Director Vacant

16 Senior Administration Officer: Administration Filled Aluwani Madima Permanent

17 Senior Administration Officer: Executive Office Filled Thabang Letsietsa Permanent

18 Senior Administration Officer: Research and M&E Filled Tshegofatso Mosegedi Contract
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# Job Title Job Status Job Encumbent Appointment Type
19 Senior Administration Clerk: Administration Filled Pelwana Tsambo Permanent

20 Senior Administration Clerk: Capacity Building and Legal Support Filled Nthato Kgori Permanent

21 Senior Administration Clerk: Research and M&E Filled Andreas Motsoene Permanent

22 Senior Administration Clerk: Stakeholder Management Filled Mahlatse Mkhonto Permanent

23 Intern Filled Aubrey Sekhwela Contract 

24 Intern Filled Nthabeleng Matsepe Contract 

Table 9: Reasons for Staff Leaving

Reason Number Position Total	number	of	employees	leaving
Resignation 0 Not applicable Not applicable

Dismissal 0 Not applicable Not applicable

Expiry of contract 2 Interns 2

Retirement 0 Not applicable Not applicable

Death 0 Not applicable Not applicable

Table 10: NSA Secretariat Equity Profile

Gender/Race Profile African Coloured Indian White
Male 9 0 0 0

Female 11 1 0 0

Total 20 1 0 0

Equity Profile Female Male
No of Employees 12 9

Disability Profile Disability Non-Disability
Female 0 12

Male 0 9

Total 0 21
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�	 NSA	Secretariat	Remuneration	and	Vacancy	by	Salary	Band	as	at	31	March	2021

The director and staff of the NSA were remunerated in line with the approved salary bands for the period and as aligned to the DPSA remuneration policy. Employees were remunerated as 
follows: 

Table 11: NSA Remuneration and Vacancy by Salary Band as at 31 March 2021

Salary Band Number of Posts Approved on 
Establishment

Number of Posts Filled 
Permanently

Number of Posts Filled on 
Contract

Vacancies

Skilled (3-5) 2 1 0 1

Highly Skilled Production (6-8) 6 6 0 0

Highly Skilled Supervision (9-12) 8 3 5 0

Senior Management (13-16) 2 1 0 1

Total 18 11 5 2
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�	 NSA	Secretariat	Performance	Management	and	Personal	Development

In terms of the HR policy, all employees had a performance agreement as well as a personal development plan for the financial year. According to the DPSA Circular issued with regards to 
employee performance assessment, the performance of all employees was assessed annually.





PART E
Financial Overview
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23. FINANCIAL OVERVIEW

�	 Financial	Management

The NSA is committed to good financial practices in line with the requirements of the Public Finance Management Act 1 of 1999 (as amended in 2010). The act is in place “to regulate 
financial management in the national government and provincial governments; to ensure that all revenue, expenditure, assets and liabilities of those governments are managed efficiently and 
effectively; to provide for the responsibilities of persons entrusted with financial management in those governments; and to provide for matters connected therewith.”

� Revenue

The NSA does not collect revenue as the Department of Higher Education and Training funds the work of the NSA with voted funds. The Secretariat is responsible for the administration of 
all the funding, and accounts through the Skills Development Branch of the DHET. This funding caters for expenses in terms of administration, goods, and services, as well as NSA Authority 
Members’ expenses for travel and subsistence, sitting fees and transportation services.

NSA projects are funded by the DHET through an allocation from the National Skills Fund (NSF). Given the NSA Secretariat’s lack of capacity, the funds allocated from the NSF are managed 
through a fund management company, NEXIA SAB&T, which was appointed as the fund management agency of the NSA from April 2018 for a three-year period. 
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� Voted Funds 

Expenditure Item Descriptions NSA  Budget 2020/21  Year-to-date 
Expenditure as @ 
31 March 2021 

 Commitments Amounts Available Budget

Compensation of Employees     
Salaries and Wages Budget R 7 159 000 R 7 100 050  R 58 950
Social Contributions Budget R 1 026 000 R 963 125  R 62 875
Totals: Compensation R 8 185 000 R 8 063 175 R 0 R 121 825
Goods and Services     
Catering: Departmental Activities R 0   R 0
Communication (Airtime and Data, Telephone and Fax) R 48 000 R 26 682 R 0 R 21 318

Consumables (Business and Advertising Services: Board 
Member)

R 730 000 R 722 745 R 0 R 7 255

Consumables (Stationery, Print Cartridge) R 4 000 R 3 596 R 0 R 404

Travel and Subsistence R 208 000 R 130 903  R 77 097
Operating Payments (Courier, Printing and Publications 
Services)

R 54 000 R 39 802  R 14 198

Venues and Facilities R 0 R 0 R 0 R 0

Dept Agency: Claims against State R 18 000 R 17 844  R 156
Operating Lease: Other Machinery and Equipment R 44 000 R 40 414 R 3 368 R 218
Totals: Goods and Services R 1 106 000 R 981 986 R 3 368 R 120 646
Machinery	and	Equipment     

Computer Hardware and Systems: Desktops and Laptops R 139 000 R 126 505 R 0 R 12 495
Totals: Machinery and Equipment R 139 000 R 126 505 R 0 R 12 495
Grand Totals R 9 430 000 R 9 171 666 R 3 368 R 254 966
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�	 Members’	Responsibilities	and	Approval

The Members are required to maintain adequate accounting records and are responsible for 
the content and integrity of the annual financial statements and related financial information 
included in this report. It is their responsibility to ensure that the annual financial statements 
fairly present the state of affairs of the organisation as at the end of the financial year and the 
results of its operations and cash flows for the period then ended, in conformity with the basis 
of accounting described in note 1 to the annual financial statements. The external auditors are 
engaged to express an independent opinion on the annual financial statements.

The annual financial statements are prepared in accordance with the basis of accounting 
described in note 1 to the annual financial statements and are based upon appropriate 
accounting policies consistently applied and supported by reasonable and prudent 
judgements and estimates.

The Members acknowledge that they are ultimately responsible for the system of internal 
financial control established by the organisation and place considerable importance 
on maintaining a strong control environment. To enable the Members to meet these 
responsibilities, the Members sets standards for internal control aimed at reducing the risk 
of error or loss in a cost-effective manner. The standards include the proper delegation 
of responsibilities within a clearly defined framework, effective accounting procedures, 
and adequate segregation of duties to ensure an acceptable level of risk. These controls 
are monitored throughout the organisation and all employees are required to maintain the 
highest ethical standards in ensuring the organisation’s business is conducted in a manner 
that in all reasonable circumstances is above reproach. The focus of risk management in 
the organisation is on identifying, assessing, managing, and monitoring all known forms of 
risk across the organisation. While operating risk cannot be fully eliminated, the organisation 
endeavours to minimise it by ensuring that appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems, and 
ethical behaviour are applied and managed within predetermined procedures and constraints.

The Members are of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by 

management, that the system of internal control provides reasonable assurance that the 
financial records may be relied on for the preparation of the annual financial statements. 
However, any system of internal financial control can provide only reasonable, and not 
absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Members have reviewed the organisation’s cash flow forecast and, in the light of this 
review and the current financial position, they are satisfied that the organisation has or has 
access to adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.

The external auditors are responsible for independently auditing and reporting on the 
company’s annual financial statements. The annual financial statements have been examined 
by the company’s external auditors and their report is presented on page 60 - 63. The annual 
financial statements set out on pages 64 - 69, which have been prepared on the going concern 
basis, were approved by the Board of Directors on 08 November 2021 and were signed on 
its behalf by:

Approval of annual financial statements

    
Ms. Olwethu Nyewe
Acting Director of the NSA
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�	 Members	Report

The Members have pleasure in submitting their report on the annual financial statements of National Skills Authority for the year ended 31 March 2021.

1.	 Review	of	financial	results	and	activities

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting policies as set out in Note 1 to the annual financial statements. The accounting policies have been 
applied consistently compared to the prior year.

Full details of the financial position, results of operations, and cash flows of the organisation are set out in these annual financial statements.

2.	 Members

The Members in office at the date of this report are as follows:

Members Appointment date End of term Nationality Members Appointment date End of term Nationality
C. Nwaila 27 February 2020 South African N. Ntingane 28 January 2020 South African

M. Maile 22 July 2020 South African O. Sipuka 28 January 2020 South African

J. Maepa 28 January 2020 South African T. Josopu 28 January 2020 South African

P.S. Phala 28 January 2020 South African N. Ndlovu 28 January 2020 South African

J. Vass 28 January 2020 South African S. Mabuza 28 January 2020 South African

R. Msiza 28 January 2020 South African S. Mlotshwa 28 January 2020 South African

Z. Khuzwayo 28 January 2020 South African B. Disipi 28 January 2020 South African

P. Mokoena 28 January 2020 South African C. Reynders 28 January 2020 South African

T. Oliphant 28 January 2020 South African T. Masondo 28 January 2020 South African

P. Ramagaga 28 January 2020 South African O. Nyewe Ex Officio (Acting) South African

M. Ally 28 January 2020 South African M. Ratshivhanda 28 January 2020 South African 

S. Nxumalo 28 January 2020 South African L. Mhlongo 28 January 2020 South African 

L. van Kramberg 28 January 2020 South African R. Masambo 27 February 2020 South African 

M.P. Mphela 28 January 2020 22 July 2020 South African J. Reddy 28 February 2020 South African 

A. Benjamin 28 January 2020 South African V. Naidoo 28 January 2020 South African



NATIONAL SKILLS AUTHORITY - ANNUAL REPORT 2020/21 65

�	 Members	Report	/	continued

3.	 Property,	plant,	and	equipment

There was no change in the nature of the property, plant, and equipment of the company or 
in the policy regarding their use.

At 31 March 2021 the organisation’s investment in property, plant, and equipment amounted 
to R259 420 (2020:R285 994), of which R29 986 (2020: R300 996) was added in the current 
year through additions.

4.	 Events	after	the	reporting	period

The Directors are not aware of any material event which occurred after the reporting date and 
up to the date of this report.

5. Going concern

The World Health Organisation declared a global pandemic, with the spread of the Corona 
Virus (COVID-19). As a result, the SA Government has declared a National State of Disaster 
followed by a lockdown that enforced various measures which led to reduced business 
activities across many industries, this however has not affected the organisation’s ability to 
continue as a going concern. The organisation has cash and cash equivalents on hand and 
will prudently manage them and other resources to ensure continuing operations.

The declaration of the pandemic does not affect the annual financial statement for the 
reporting period ended 31 March 2021.

The Members believe that the organisation has adequate financial resources to continue in 
operation for the foreseeable future and accordingly the annual financial statements have 
been prepared on a going concern basis. The Members have satisfied themselves that the 
organisation is in a sound financial position and that it has access to sufficient borrowing 

facilities to meet its foreseeable cash requirements. The Members are not aware of any new 
material changes that may adversely impact the organisation. The Members are also not 
aware of any material non-compliance with statutory or regulatory requirements or of any 
pending changes to legislation which may affect the organisation.
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�	 Independent	Auditor’s	Report

Independent Auditor’s Report

31 March 2021

To the Stakeholders of National Skills Authority

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of National Skills Authority set out on pages 9   to 15, 
which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2021, and the statement of 
profit or loss and other comprehensive income and statement of cash flows for the year then 
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting 
policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements of National Skills Authority for the year ended 31 
March 2021 are prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the basis of accounting 
described in note 1 to the financial statements.

Basis	for	Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities 
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of 
the company in accordance with the Independent Regulatory Board for Auditors’ Code 
of Professional Conduct for Registered Auditors (IRBA Code) and other independence 
requirements applicable to performing audits of financial statements in South Africa. We have 
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IRBA Code  and in accordance 
with other ethical requirements applicable to performing audits in South Africa. The IRBA 
Code is consistent with the corresponding sections of the International Ethics Standards 
Board for Accountants’ International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including 
International Independence Standards). We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis	of	Matter	–	Basis	of	Accounting

We draw attention to note 1 to the financial statements, which describes the basis of accounting. 
The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the organisation’s own accounting 

policies to satisfy the financial information needs of the organisation’s stakeholders. As a 
result, the financial statements may not be suitable for another purpose. Our opinion is not 
modified in respect of this matter.

Emphasis of Matter – Impact of the outbreak of COVID-19 on the financial statements

We draw your attention to note 13 of the annual financial statements, which describes the 
effect of COVID-19 on the organisation. In forming our opinion on the organisation’s financial 
statements, which is not modified, we draw your attention to the Members’ view on the impact 
of the COVID-19 pandemic as disclosed on page 15.

Since the balance sheet date, the organisation has assessed the impact of COVID-19 on the 
annual financial statements and considered the potential impact on the business.

Other	Information

The Members are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises 
the information included in the document titled “National Skills Authority Annual Financial 
Statements for the year ended 31 March 2021”, which includes the Members’ Report. The 
other information does not include the financial statements and our Auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
express an audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 
with the financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to 
be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is 
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have 
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities	of	the	Members	for	the	Financial	Statements

The Members are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance 
with the basis of accounting described in note 1, for determining that the basis of preparation 
is acceptable in the circumstances and for such internal control as the members determine 
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the financial statements, the Members are responsible for assessing the 
organisation’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Members either 
intend to liquidate the organisation or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but 
to do so.

Auditor’s	Responsibilities	for	the	Audit	of	the	Financial	Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as 
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance 
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect 
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain 
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to 
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the organisation’s internal control.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the members.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of the Members’ use of the going concern basis 
of accounting and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material 
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on 
the organisation’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 

uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the 
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, 
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up 
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the 
organisation to cease to continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Members.

We communicate with the Members regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit.

Mazars

Partner:	Daniel	Tekie	

Registered	Auditor	

18	November	2021	

Pretoria
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Statement	of	Financial	Position	as	at	31	March	2021

Figures in Rand Note(s) 2021 2020

Assets

Non-Current Assets
Property, plant, and equipment 2 259 420 285 994

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 3 2 182 814 8 739 229

Total Assets 2 442 234 9 025 223

Equity	and	Liabilities

Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables 4 662 066 716 441

Grants received in advance 5 1 780 168 8 308 782

2 442 234 9 025 223

Total	Equity	and	Liabilities 2	442	234 9	025	223
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Statement of Comprehensive Income
Figures in Rand Note(s) 2021 2020

Revenue

Government grants 11 213 669 9 359 891

Other income

Sponsorships received - 935 000

Operating expenses

Administration expenses - (9 079)

Advertising (232 133) (343 120)

Auditors’ remuneration 10 - (43 010)

Awards - (556 750)

Bank charges (43 023) (83 913)

Catering (5 280) (125 672)

Conference facility (557 395) (932 647)

Consulting and professional fees (9 643 909) (7 213 715)

Depreciation (30 120) (15 002)

Legal expenses (219 661) -

Printing and stationery (168 313) (507 575)

Promotions (17 895) (480 421)

Subscriptions (1 570) (63 239)

Telephone and fax (199 545) -

Training (102 465) (87 400)

Travel - local (128 295) (400 318)

(11	349	604) (10	861	861)

Operating loss (135 935) (566 970)

Interest received 9 135 935 566 970
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Statement of Cash Flows

Figures in Rand Note(s) 2021 2020

Cash	flows	from	operating	activities

Cash (used in) generated from operations 11 (6 688 805) 5 963 887

Interest income 135 935 566 970

Sponsorships received - 935 000

Net cash flows from operating activities (6 552 870) 7 465 857

Cash	flows	in	investing	activities

Purchase of property, plant, and equipment 2 (3 545) (300 996)

Net cash in investing activities (3 545) (300 996)

Cash	flows	from	financing	activities

Total cash movement for the year (6 556 415) 7 164 861

Cash at the beginning of the year 8 739 229 1 574 368

Total	cash	at	end	of	the	year 3 2	182	814 8	739	229
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� Accounting Policies

1.	 Basis	of	preparation	and	summary	of	significant	accounting	policies

The annual financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis in accordance 
with the accounting policies as set out below. The annual financial statements have been 
prepared on the historical cost basis. They are presented in South African Rands.

These accounting policies are consistent with the previous period.

1.1.	 Property,	plant,	and	equipment

Property, plant, and equipment are tangible assets which the organisation holds for its own 
use, which are expected to be used for more than one period.

Property, plant, and equipment is initially measured at cost.

Cost includes costs incurred initially to acquire or construct an item of property, plant, and 
equipment and costs incurred subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. If a 
replacement cost is recognised in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant, and 
equipment, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.

Property, plant, and equipment is subsequently stated at cost less accumulated depreciation 
and any accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation of an asset commences when the asset is available for use as intended by 
management. Depreciation is charged to write-off the asset’s carrying amount over its 
estimated useful life to its estimated residual value, using a method that best reflects the 
pattern in which the asset’s economic benefits are consumed by the organisation.

The useful lives of items of property, plant, and equipment have been assessed as follows:

Item Depreciation	method Average	useful	life

Furniture and fixtures Straight line 10 years

Office equipment Straight line 10 years

IT equipment Straight line 10 years

When indicators are present that the useful lives and residual values of items of property, 
plant, and equipment have changed since the most recent annual reporting date, they are 
reassessed. Any changes are accounted for prospectively as a change in accounting estimate.

Impairment tests are performed on property, plant, and equipment when there is an indicator 
that they may be impaired. When the carrying amount of an item of property, plant, and 
equipment is assessed to be higher than the estimated recoverable amount, an impairment 
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss to bring the carrying amount in line with the 
recoverable amount.

An item of property, plant, and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future 
economic benefits are expected from its continued use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising 
from the derecognition of an item of property, plant, and equipment, determined as the 
difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the item, is 
included in profit or loss when the item is derecognised.

1.2.	 Financial instruments 

Initial measurement

Financial instruments are initially measured at the transaction price (including transaction 
costs except in the initial measurement of financial assets and liabilities that are measured 
at fair value through profit or loss) unless the arrangement constitutes, in effect, a financing 
transaction in which case it is measured at the present value of the future payments discounted 
at a market rate of interest for a similar debt instrument 
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Financial instruments at amortised cost

These include loans, trade receivables and trade payables. Those debt instruments which 
meet the criteria in section 11.8(b) of the standard, are subsequently measured at amortised 
cost using the effective interest method. Debt instruments which are classified as current 
assets or current liabilities are measured at the undiscounted amount of the cash expected 
to be received or paid unless the arrangement effectively constitutes a financing transaction.

At each reporting date, the carrying amounts of assets held in this category are reviewed 
to determine whether there is any objective evidence of impairment. If there is objective 
evidence, the recoverable amount is estimated and compared with the carrying amount. If 
the estimated recoverable amount is lower, the carrying amount is reduced to its estimated 
recoverable amount, and an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

1.3.	 Impairment	of	assets

The organisation assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that property, 
plant, and equipment may be impaired.

If there is any such indication, the recoverable amount of any affected asset (or group of related 
assets) is estimated and compared with its carrying amount. If the estimated recoverable 
amount is lower, the carrying amount is reduced to its estimated recoverable amount, and an 
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

If an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or group of 
related assets) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but not in excess 
of the amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for 
the asset (or group of assets) in prior years. A reversal of impairment is recognised immediately 
in profit or loss.

1.4.	 Government grants

Grants that do not impose specified future performance conditions are recognised in income 
when the grant proceeds are receivable.

Grants that impose specified future performance conditions are recognised in income only 
when the performance conditions are met.

Grants received before the revenue recognition criteria are satisfied are recognised as a 
liability. 

Grants are measured at the fair value of the asset received or receivable.

1.5.	 Revenue

Interest is recognised, in profit or loss, using the effective interest rate method.
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

Figures in Rand 2021 2020

2.	 Property,	plant	and	equipment

2021 2020

Cost or revaluation Accumulated 
depreciation

Carrying value Cost or revaluation Accumulated 
depreciation

Carrying value

Furniture and fixtures 105 591 (12 044) 93 547 105 591 (1 533) 104 058

Office equipment 75 812 (15 616) 60 196 75 812 (8 056) 67 756

IT equipment 123 138 (17 461) 105 677 119 593 (5 413) 114 180

Total 304	541 (45	121) 259	420 300	996 (15	002) 285	994

Reconciliation	of	property,	plant,	and	equipment	-	2021

Furniture and fixtures

Opening balance
104 058

Additions

-

Depreciation

(10 511)

Closing balance
93 547

Office equipment 67 756 - (7 561) 60 196

IT equipment 114 180 3 545 (12 048) 105 677

285 994 3 545 (30 120) 259 420

Reconciliation	of	property,	plant,	and	equipment	-	2020

Furniture and fixtures

Opening balance
-

Additions

105 591

Depreciation

(1 533)

Closing balance
104 058

Office equipment - 75 812 (8 056) 67 756

IT equipment - 119 593 (5 413) 114 180

- 300 996 (15 002) 285 994
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Notes	to	the	Annual	Financial	Statements	/	continued

Figures in Rand 2021 2020
3.	Cash	and	cash	equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of:

 Bank balances 2 182 814 8 739 229
4.	 Trade	and	other	payables

 Trade payables 662 066 716 341

 Other payables - 100

662 066 716 441
5.	Grants	received	in	advance

 At amortised cost
 National Skills Authority 1 780 168 8 308 782

 Current liabilities
 Opening balance 8 308 782 (748 780)

 Amounts recognised as income in current year (11 213 669) (9 359 891)

 Grants received in the current year 4 685 055 18 417 453

1 780 168 8 308 782
6.	Revenue

 Government grants 11 213 669 9 359 891
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Notes	to	the	Annual	Financial	Statements	/	continued

Figures in Rand 2021 2020

7.	Other	income

 Sponsorships received - 935 000

8.		Depreciation

 The following items are included within depreciation, amortisation, and impairments:

 Depreciation
 Property, plant, and equipment 30 120 15 002

9.		Investment	revenue   

 Interest revenue
 Bank 135 935 566 970

10.Auditor’s	remuneration

 Fees - 43 010

11.	Cash	(used	in)	generated	from	operations

 Profit before taxation 
 Adjustments	for:
 Depreciation and amortisation

-

30 120

-

15 002

 Interest received (135 935) (566 970)

 Sponsorships received 
 Changes	in	working	capital:
 Trade and other payables

-

(54 375)

(935 000)

(1 606 707)

 Grants received in advance and grants receivable (6 528 615) 9 057 562



NATIONAL SKILLS AUTHORITY - ANNUAL REPORT 2020/2176

(6 688 805) 5 963 887
Notes to the Annual Financial Statements / continued

6.	 Members’	emoluments

No emoluments were paid to the Members or any individuals holding a prescribed office during the year.

7.	 Going concern

The World Health Organisation declared a global pandemic, with the spread of the Corona Virus (COVID-19). As a result, the SA Government has declared a National State of Disaster followed 
by a lockdown that enforced various measures which led to reduced business activities across many industries, this however has not affected the organisation’s ability to continue as a going 
concern. The organisation has cash and cash equivalents on hand and will prudently manage them and other resources to ensure continuing operations.

The declaration of the pandemic does not affect the annual financial statement for the reporting period ended 31 March 2021.

The annual financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. This basis presumes that funds will be available to finance future 
operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities, contingent obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business.
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